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Franklin Electric is a global leader in the production and 

marketing of water and fuel pumping systems and is a 

technical leader in submersible motors, drives, controls 

and monitoring devices. Franklin’s products are present 

in approximately one of every two water wells and fi lling 

stations worldwide.

About The Company
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2006 Financial Highlights
In thousands, except per share amounts

2006

$ 557,948 
$   56,762 

$   28,397 
$ 345,831 

$   55,389 
$   23,190 

10.2% 

28.4% 

23,284 

$       2.43 

$       0.43 

Note: The 2006 fi nancial highlights exclude the sales and earnings of the Engineered Motor Products Division
(EMPD) which was sold during the fourth quarter of 2006, for all periods presented.
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As Chief Executive Offi cer of Franklin Electric, I 

have two primary objectives—sustain Franklin’s

heritage of superior fi nancial performance and 

enhance the Company’s long-term capability to 

grow and prosper in an increasingly competitive 

global marketplace. Franklin people worldwide 

made solid progress on both of these objectives

in 2006, achieving record earnings while

undertaking major marketing, technical, and

manufacturing initiatives that will enhance the 

Company’s growth and cost position.

Financial Highlights for 2006 include:

• Fully diluted earnings per share from 

continuing operations were a record $2.43, up 

$.46 or 23% compared to 2005.

• During the year Franklin invested $23 million 

for capital expenditures and $159 million for 

acquisitions. Even with these investments,

Chairman’s Letter

I am pleased to report another year of substantial achievement— blending 

superior fi nancial results with initiatives that pave the way for our future success.

Water well under construction in Wells County, Indiana.

Franklin Tech provides continual education for the 
water well contractor.

because of the Company’s strong operating cash 

fl ow, year-end net debt was $28 million and

the debt-to-equity ratio was 8%. The Company

continues to have substantial capacity to

capitalize on future strategic opportunities. 

• The Company’s dividend was increased from

an annual rate of $.40 per share to $.44 per 

share, the 13th increase in the past 13 years.

As important as our annual

fi nancial performance is to 

the success of our Company,

our primary mission remains

to build Franklin’s long-term capability to 

prosper and grow in the global pumping systems 

marketplace. It is with this in mind that we are 

undertaking several major strategic initiatives 

that will have a long-term positive impact on the

Company’s growth and competitive cost position. 
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Strategic Focus

We defi ne Franklin Electric as a process control 

company that is focused on expanding sales in 

two global distribution channels—water systems 

and petroleum equipment. These are attractive 

segments for Franklin because:

are growing globally;

feature a more diversifi ed 

mer base; installing

actors play a key role in both 

nels and they place a high

value on reliable submersible

pumping; and in both channels

Franklin has a strong reputation

for high-quality products with

installing contractors.

Our strategy for growing within these

channels involves product line extensions and 

enhancements. Our core products, Franklin

submersible motors, are present in over half of 

A. Franklin fi eld service engineers are located 
throughout the world to provide hands-on 
support for water systems professionals.

B. 4-inch submersible motor.

C. 4-inch High Thrust submersible motor.

D. 6-inch Hi-Temp submersible motor.

E. A complete line of controls for any water 
well installation.D

C E

the water well and fi lling station installations 

worldwide. Our strategic objective is to increase 

our revenue per installation by offering an

expanded line of pumping system components 

that complement Franklin submersible motors. 

xample, in an installation that includes a 

motor, our revenue may be $150; if that

tallation includes a Franklin pump as 

r revenue may be $300; if a Franklin

ckage is included our revenue may be

$900. In both water and petroleum equipment

we have expanded our high-quality product 

offerings into adjacent products that are also sold 

through these channels and this is increasing our 

revenue potential.
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A. End suction centrifugal pump 
launched in the 3rd quarter 2006.

B. Franklin Electric Submersible
and above-ground pumps.

C. Little Giant wastewater pumps 
acquired in the 2nd quarter 2006.

D. 6"-submersible turbine pump, 
launched 4th quarter 2006.

Water Systems Growth

In Water Systems, several years ago we chose to 

fundamentally change our business model. Prior

to 2005 we sold Franklin motors to OEM pump

manufacturers who in turn sold

them to distributors. In late 2004 

we expanded our water systems

product line to include a broad ran

of pumps and began to sell all of 

our products directly to distributo

in addition to supplying pump 

manufacturers. We pursued this 

strategy to become more effi cient,

and in response to changing

competitive conditions in the wate

systems market. There has been a signifi cant

consolidation of industry players at both the 

submersible pump manufacturer and distributor

level. In addition, sales of our motors exclusively

through pump manufacturers meant an 

additional layer in the distribution of our motors

that led to ineffi ciencies. In light of these conditions 

we concluded that the time had come for us to

diversify our customer base by selling directly to 

o expand our addressable market 

n water and water transfer 

tems to our product line. 

 more effi cient strategy has 

 build our global position

of groundwater pumping

components by offering a

itive product package to our 

While before the change we were 

ling motors, we are now selling

all groundwater 

pumping system

components through a growing global 

distribution network. We believe we are already

the worldwide sales leader in groundwater 

pumping systems, and that we continue to have 
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Franklin water systems provide a reliable source of water for 
agriculture and municipalities.

We took an important step in pursing this strategy 

during the second quarter of 2006 when we 

completed the acquisition of the Little Giant Pump

Company. This acquisition increased our adjacent

pumping system sales in 2006 by $75 million. In

addition to an extensive product catalog, Little

Giant also has a large and highly regarded North

American fi eld sales network calling on plumbing,  

HVAC, and industrial wholesalers. This

organization is complementary to the Franklin 

fi eld sales network which sells to professional

water systems distributors. With different

customer bases, the two sales organizations have

good cross-selling opportunities and together 

give us the best residential, light-commercial, and 

agricultural water systems selling and service 

network in North America.

As a result of strong organic growth and the Little

Giant pump acquisition, our water systems sales 

grew to $459 million in 2006—an increase of $125

million or 37% versus 2005.

substantial headroom for both organic and

acquisition growth. 

While our core strategy is focused on

expanding within the $2 billion global business 

segment for groundwater pumping systems,

we also see a major opportunity in adjacent

pumping applications.

are residential, light-

ercial, and agricultural

ng systems that are 

rough the same channels

undwater systems. The 

nt systems include sump 

, sewage pumps, effl uent

, condensate pumps, 

pumps, and other

ty pumps used in these 

ations. We believe these 

adjacent systems represent 

another $2 billion global market 

opportunity.

The business dynamic that we are building

involves complementing our strong position in

groundwater to grow our position in adjacent 

pumping systems, and using our ability to

supply adjacent systems to reinforce and build 

our sales in groundwater applications.

D
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the product benefi ts represent a 

state-of-the-art improvement for 

homeowners as well as installing

contractors.

As we enter 2007 we 

are also introducing 

our new TRI-SEAL and

VersaJet pump product

lines. These products, 

when fully introduced

during the third quarter

of 2007, will replace our 

existing submersible and jet pump lines. They

will provide our customers with better effi ciency,

and value-added features while requiring less

materials and labor to manufacture. 

On the production side of our water systems 

business we are continuing to expand our

manufacturing presence in low-cost regions. 

During 2006 we expanded our manufacturing 

facilities in Linares, Mexico, and Suzhou, China. We

are now producing water systems pumps as well as

submersible motors in Linares while increasing our 

component manufacturing capability in Suzhou.

In addition, we started a pump manufacturing

operation in our Wilburton, Oklahoma, facility to 

produce large sub-turbine and centrifugal pumps.

Homeowners enjoy a steady supply of water with Franklin’s
constant pressure system.

Going forward we have several important 

new product introductions which will enhance

our water systems sales momentum. The

most important is the ongoing rollout of our  

SubDrive QuickPAK constant pressure product 

line. QuickPAK is a prepackaged, plug-and-

play constant-pressure system for water wells. 

The QuickPAK system uses a variable speed 

drive instead of a pressure tank to control 

water pressure in the home. With a QuickPAK

installation, the homeowner can set the water 

pressure at the desired level and it will stay at a 

constant level regardless of how many showers, 

appliances or sprinklers may be in use. A system

using a large pressure tank allows substantial and 

annoying variations in the water pressure to occur.

We introduced QuickPAK in 2006 and it has

rapidly achieved an annual sales run-rate in 

excess of $12 million—and yet this represents only 

an estimated 2 to 3% penetration of the potential

market. The upside is signifi cant for Franklin and

A
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Fueling Systems Growth

During the fourth quarter of 2006 we took an 

important step to enhance our product offering

with the acquisition of Healy Systems. Healy 

manufactures a proprietary and patented system

for controlling evaporative gasoline emissions 

from fi lling stations. The Healy product line 

is highly complementary to the Franklin Fuel

Management System, which is a modular

network of electronic sensors and controls

that provide station owners with high speed

pumping, automated inventory management,

product quality monitoring, and leak detection. 

We are in a strong strategic position within the 

global Water Systems market. However, as I have 

previously informed investors, we believe that 

one or two of the large integrated pump OEM 

B

C

A. Infrared Pumptec, pump 
protection system.

B. SubDrive family of constant 
pressure controllers.

C. SubDrive QuickPAK, complete 
constant pressure system.

customers have

stockpiled our

4-inch submersible

response to the Company’s announcement that

we will principally sell directly to distributors in

2007 and beyond. We believe that these inventory 

stockpiles could represent up to a two month 

supply of 4-inch submersible motors in North 

America and could be sold off during the fi rst 

half of 2007. This destocking, combined with

the competitive response to our pump market

share gains, may result in unusual marketplace

volatility during the fi rst part of 2007. Overall, 

despite these short-term market concerns, we are

well positioned to continue our Water Systems 

growth in 2007 and beyond.
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A. Healy vapor recovery equipment.

B. Fueling Systems product offering has grown to include 
most of the underground components of a fi lling station.

C. Fuel management controls.

A

B

Our strategy for Fueling Systems growth has been 

to add components to our product line which

complement the ubiquitous Franklin submersible 

motor. As a result, our product line now includes

most of the underground components of a fi lling 

station—except the large fuel storage tanks—as 

well as the electronic systems that control and 

monitor the fuel delivery process.

There are a number of growth drivers for the

Franklin Fuel Management System including

legislative mandate. For example, California has

enacted vapor control regulations which mandate 

that the 10,000 stations in the state install vapor 

control and monitoring systems by mid 2009. As

of now, the Franklin/Healy vapor control system 

With the Healy acquisition, the Fueling Systems 

business has become an increasingly signifi cant 

part of our Company. Fueling Systems sales in 

2006 were $98.8 million, up 43% versus prior year.

We entered the fueling equipment business in 

the 1960s when Franklin engineers developed 

the fi rst explosion-proof submersible electric 

motor for use in gasoline. To this day the

Franklin motor is the only submersible motor

listed by Underwriters Laboratories for use in

explosion-proof applications. As a result, Franklin

submersible motors currently power the pumping

system in almost every gas station in North

America and a high percentage in the world.
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Sale of the Engineered Motor Products 
Division (EMPD)

In December 2006 we sold the Company’s

Engineered Motor Products Division to Capital

Works, a Cleveland-based private equity fi rm. 

EMPD manufactures custom motors for OEM 

customers in a wide variety of applications 

including ice cream makers, bowling pin

setters, dental chairs, boat lifts, food processing

equipment, and many others. EMPD represented 

less than 10% of our sales and generated earnings

of about $.01 per share in 2006. We were paid

approximately $16 million for the EMPD assets 

which included the Division’s manufacturing

facility and the Franklin Electric Headquarters

building on the same site. Franklin has a lease to

continue occupying the building and we have 

started to explore options for a new Headquarters

and Tech Center location.

Summary Comments

During 2006 the people of Franklin Electric 

continued to make important progress on the

Franklin’s variable speed fueling system maintains a constant fl ow 
of pressure regardless of demand at the pump.

is the only one approved by the California Air 

Resources Board (CARB). Since each system sells 

for $17,000 to $25,000, this represents a major 

market opportunity for the Company. We 

believe that other states and municipalities 

worldwide may pass statutory vapor control

regulations as well.  

In addition, the advent of alternative fuels

and the growing demand for automobiles

in developing countries are also stimulating 

investment in fi lling station infrastructure. We

foresee continued organic and acquisition growth 

for Franklin Fueling Systems in 2007 and beyond.

C



10

strategic transformation of the Company. We 

again achieved record fi nancial performance, but

of greater importance, we responded to changing 

market conditions with proactive initiatives to 

expand our customer base and product lines.

We foresee opportunities to continue growing 

in both the Global Water and Fueling markets. 

We will capitalize on these opportunities by 

maintaining our intense focus on the Key

Factors for Success (Quality, Availability, Service,

Innovation, and Value) which have been the basis 

of our progress over many years.

R. Scott Trumbull
Chairman and Chief Executive Offi cer



A

B
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C
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2006 // 2005

Overview

Sales and earnings from continuing operations for 2006 

were up from 2005. The increase in sales was primarily 

related to sales from acquisitions. Sales growth benefi ted 

from selling price realization gains and organic growth 

in Water Systems motor and pump unit shipments as 

well as organic growth in Fueling Systems product 

shipments, primarily fl exible pipe. Earnings improved 

in 2006 primarily due to the increased sales as well 

as reduced manufacturing costs from the Company’s 

growing production base in Mexico, The Czech Re-

public, and China. These improvements were partially 

offset by higher commodity costs and increased fi xed 

costs incurred in connection with selling, general and 

administrative spending resulting from the Company’s 

strategy of selling to a more diversifi ed customer base 

by marketing its Water Systems products directly to 

distributors. Included in the results for 2006 are stock-

based compensation expenses recorded under the new 

accounting guidelines of Statement of Financial Ac-

counting Standards (SFAS) No. 123(R). The accounting 

pronouncement was adopted as of January 1, 2006.

During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company divest-

ed its Engineered Motor Products Division (EMPD). For 

fi nancial statement purposes, EMPD has been classifi ed 

as a discontinued operation for all periods presented. As 

a discontinued operation, EMPD’s sales and operational 

impact are excluded from the Company’s continuing 

operations results and reported in the income statement 

section as “discontinued operations.” EMPD’s sales for 

2006 through the date of divestiture and for full years 

2005 and 2004 represented less than 10 percent of the 

Company’s total sales. EMPD’s net earnings for 2006 

through the date of divestiture and for full year 2005 

were about $0.01 per share in both years. EMPD had a 

net loss for full year 2004 of about $0.02 per share. Un-

less otherwise indicated, the following discussion relates 

to continuing operations only.

Results of Operations

Net sales from continuing operations for fi scal year 

2006 were a record $557.9 million, an increase of $154.5 

million or 38 percent compared to 2005 sales of $403.4 

million. Incremental sales related to acquisitions for 

fi scal year 2006 were about $86 million or 21 percent 

of prior year sales. The majority of the sales growth 

from acquisitions resulted from the Little Giant Pump 

Company. Sales growth benefi ted from price realization 

gains and organic growth in Water Systems motor and 

pumps. Sales increased by gains in price realization of 

approximately $20.6 million or 5 percent in 2006 result-

ing from increases in product selling prices, changes in 

customer sales discount programs and greater direct 

sales to distribution customers. Water Systems product 

sales worldwide were up about 37 percent for fi scal year 

2006 compared to 2005. Sales revenue increased in all of 

Water Systems’ major product categories during the year 

(including submersible motors, pumps, and drives and 

controls). Fueling Systems worldwide sales increased 

approximately 43 percent in 2006 from fi scal year 2005.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations 
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Cost of sales from continuing operations as a percent 

of net sales for 2006 and 2005 was 65.7 percent and 64.6 

percent, respectively. Cost of sales as a percent of net 

sales increased in 2006 from 2005 primarily as a result of 

product mix changes as Fueling Systems’ products and 

complete Water Systems pumps (including Little Giant 

product lines) represented a higher percentage of overall 

sales and these product lines carry a higher cost of sales 

than submersible motor products.

Selling and administrative (“SG&A”) expense as a 

percent of net sales for 2006 and 2005 was 18.4 percent 

and 17.6 percent, respectively. Incremental increases in 

SG&A expense were about $31.7 million in 2006 over 

2005 primarily due to acquisitions of $15.5 million, 

stock-based compensation expense of $2.7 million and 

increased fi xed costs incurred in connection with selling, 

general and administrative spending resulting from 

the Company’s strategy of selling to a more diversifi ed 

customer base by marketing its Water Systems products 

directly to distributors.

Interest expense for 2006 and 2005 was $3.4 million and 

$0.8 million, respectively. Interest expense increased in 

2006 due to the debt incurred for the acquisitions of the 

Little Giant Pump Company and Healy Systems. 

Included in other income for 2006 and 2005 was inter-

est income of $1.9 million and $1.4 million, respectively, 

primarily derived from the investment of cash balances 

in short-term U.S. treasury and agency securities. Also 

included in other income for 2006 and 2005 was income 

from equity investments of $0.7 million and $0.1 million, 

respectively.

Foreign currency-based transactions produced a loss 

for 2006 of about $0.1 million primarily due to euro 

rate changes relative to other currencies in Europe and 

the U.S. dollar. Foreign currency-based transactions 

produced a gain for 2005 of $0.2 million primarily due 

to fl uctuations between the U.S. dollar and the Chinese 

Yuan and Mexican Peso.

The provision for income taxes for continuing operations 

in 2006 and 2005 was $30.7 million and $25.0 million, 

respectively. The effective tax rates were 35.1 and 35.3 

percent for 2006 and 2005, respectively. The effective tax 

rate differs from the United States statutory rate of 35 

percent, generally due to foreign income exclusion and 

R&D credits and due to the effects of state and foreign 

income taxes, net of federal tax benefi ts. 

Income from continuing operations for 2006 was $56.8 

million, or $2.43 per diluted share, compared to 2005 

income from continuing operations of $45.8 million or 

$1.97 per diluted share.

Capital Resources and Liquidity

Cash fl ows from operations provide the principal source 

of current liquidity. Net cash fl ows provided by operat-

ing activities were $55.4 million and $74.2 million in 2006 

and 2005, respectively. The primary source of cash from 

operations was earnings. Signifi cant uses of operating 

cash fl ow in 2006 and 2005 were increases in inventory, 

$11.0 million and $10.6 million, respectively. Inventories 

increased signifi cantly in 2006 and 2005 as the Company 

increased fi nished goods availability for pump products 

and distribution customers as a part of its new distribu-

tion channel strategy. Accounts receivable and accounts 

payable and other accrued expenses were signifi cant 
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sources of operating cash fl ow in 2005. Accounts receiv-

able increases were primarily attributable to the timing 

of payments received from customers and increased 

sales during 2005. Accounts payable increases were 

primarily attributable to the timing of payments made to 

vendors and increased inventories during 2005. 

Net cash fl ows used in investing activities were $131.6 

million and $63.5 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively. 

In 2006, the Company paid an aggregate of $159.2 mil-

lion for acquisitions in 2006, net of cash acquired. The 

acquisitions consisted of Little Giant Pump Company 

for $123.9 million and Healy Systems for $35.3 million. 

In 2005, the Company paid $36.0 million for short-term 

investment securities, net of short-term investment 

securities sold. The Company paid an aggregate of $8.5 

million for acquisitions in 2005, net of cash acquired. The 

acquisitions consisted of $5.6 million for Phil-Tite and 

$2.9 million for an equity investment in Pioneer. 

Cash fl ows from fi nancing activities in 2006 were $54.8 

million primarily from long-term debt. Net cash fl ows 

used in fi nancing activities were $9.0 million in 2005. 

The Company paid $9.8 million and $8.5 million in 

dividends on the Company’s common stock in 2006 and 

2005, respectively. In 2005, another principal use of cash 

was purchases of Company common stock under the 

Company’s repurchase program. During 2005, the Com-

pany repurchased 366,308 shares of its common stock for 

$13.8 million. 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 2006 were $34.0 

million compared to $52.1 million at the end of 2005. 

Working capital decreased $15.2 million in 2006 and the 

current ratio of the Company was 2.3 for 2006 compared 

to a current ratio of 3.2 at the end of 2005. The Compa-

ny’s working capital and current ratio decreased in 2006 

as the Company invested its excess cash in acquisitions 

during the year.

Principal payments of $1.0 million per year on the 

Company’s $20.0 million of unsecured long-term debt 

began in 1998 and will continue until 2008 when a bal-

loon payment of $10.0 million will fully retire the debt. 

In September 2004, the Company entered into an unse-

cured, 60-month $80.0 million, amended and restated to 

$120.0 million during December 2006, revolving credit 

agreement (the “Agreement”). The Agreement includes 

a facility fee of one-tenth of one percent on the commit-

ted amount. The Company had outstanding borrowings 

under the Agreement of $50 million at December 30, 

2006. The Company had no outstanding borrowings un-

der the Agreement at December 31, 2005. The Company 

is subject to certain fi nancial covenants with respect to 

borrowings, interest coverage, working capital, loans 

or advances, and investments. The Company was in 

compliance with all debt covenants at all times in 2006 

and 2005.

At December 30, 2006, the Company had $5.9 million of 

commitments primarily for the purchase of machinery 

and equipment, and building expansions. Management 

believes that internally generated funds and exist-

ing credit arrangements provide suffi cient liquidity to 

meet these current commitments and existing debt, and 

fi nance business growth.
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2005 // 2004
Overview

Sales and earnings for 2005 were up from 2004. The in-

crease in sales was primarily related to sales from acqui-

sitions. Sales growth was benefi ted by price realization 

gains and organic growth in Water Systems pump unit 

shipments. Earnings improved in 2005 primarily due 

to the increased sales as well as reduced manufacturing 

costs from the Company’s growing production base in 

Mexico, The Czech Republic, and China. These improve-

ments were partially offset by higher commodity costs 

and increased fi xed costs incurred in connection with the 

Company’s channel strategy change for Water Systems 

product distribution. Included in the results for 2005 

are restructuring expenses of $1.9 million pre-tax, down 

from $5.5 million pre-tax in 2004. 

Results of Operations

Net sales from continuing operations for fi scal year 

2005 were $403.4 million, an increase of $33.3 million 

or 9 percent compared to 2004 sales of $370.1 million. 

Incremental sales related to acquisitions for fi scal year 

2005 were about $17.5 million or 4 percent of sales. The 

majority of the sales growth from acquisitions resulted 

from the JBD, Inc. (the former Jacuzzi Brand) pump 

company. Sales growth was benefi ted by price realiza-

tion gains and organic growth in Water Systems pump 

unit shipments. Water Systems product sales worldwide 

were up about 10 percent for fi scal year 2005 compared 

to 2004. Sales revenue increases in all of our Water 

Systems product categories during the year (including 

submersible motors, pumps, and drives and controls) 

were partially offset by slightly lower unit volumes of 

motors and controls due to customers buying ahead of 

announced price increases in 2004. The sales increase 

in 2005 for water related products by customers prin-

cipally in the North American market accounted for 

about $33.6 million or 15 percent. The sales increase by 

European customers was about $1.8 million for 2005 or 2 

percent (when comparing both years at the current year 

exchange rate). Sales increased by gains in price realiza-

tion of approximately $25 million in 2005 resulting from 

increases in product selling prices, changes in customer 

sales discount programs and greater direct sales to dis-

tribution customers. Incremental sales for 2005 related to 

the acquisition of the assets of JBD, Inc. were about $16.1 

million. Fueling Systems product sales worldwide were 

up about 2 percent compared to the prior year, mostly 

related to an acquisition in the third quarter. Sales 

related to the acquisition of Phil-Tite Enterprises (Phil-

Tite), a manufacturer of fuel containment systems, were 

about $1.4 million in 2005. 

Cost of sales from continuing operations as a percent of 

net sales for 2005 and 2004 was 64.6 percent and 65.9 

percent, respectively. Cost of sales as a percent of net 

sales decreased in 2005 from 2004 primarily as a result 

of increased sales volume, leveraging fi xed costs, and 

improving profi t margin. The improvement in gross 

profi t from sales volume was offset by increased costs 

for certain commodities used in the manufacture of the 

electric motors, primarily steel and copper, of $5.2 mil-

lion for 2005. Manufacturing costs in 2005 were reduced 

as approximately 23 percent of global Water Systems 

manufacturing man-hours were in relatively low-cost 

countries (Mexico, The Czech Republic, and China) 
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versus about 13 percent in 2004. Gross profi t was further 

improved by increases in selling prices.

Selling and administrative (“SG&A”) expense as a 

percent of net sales for 2005 and 2004 was 17.6 percent 

and 16.3 percent, respectively. SG&A costs increased 

about $10.4 million in 2005 over 2004 partially due to 

increased selling and marketing expenses of about $3.4 

million related to the change in the Company’s strategy 

of selling to a more diversifi ed customer base by market-

ing its Water Systems products direct to distributors. The 

Company expanded its sales force and increased other 

selling expenses related to a broader customer base with 

the addition of the specialty Water Systems distributors 

as customers. Incremental SG&A expenses related to 

acquisitions were about $2.7 million for 2005. 

Restructuring expenses of $1.9 million and $5.5 million 

were incurred during 2005 and 2004, respectively. The 

expenses (included in “Restructure Expense” on the 

income statement) related to the Global Manufactur-

ing Realignment Program. The costs were primarily 

for severance and other employee related expenses, as 

well as, equipment transfers and travel. The Company 

completed phase one of the ongoing program in 2005 

and incurred pre-tax restructuring expense of about $7.5 

million over the two-year period.

Interest expense for 2005 and 2004 was $0.8 million and 

$0.5 million, respectively. Interest expense increased in 

2005 due to increased interest rates.

Included in other income for 2005 and 2004 was inter-

est income of $1.4 million and $0.5 million, respectively, 

primarily derived from the investment of cash balances 

in short-term U.S. treasury and agency securities. Also 

included in other income for 2005 was income from 

equity investments of $0.1 million.

Foreign currency-based transactions produced a gain 

for 2005 of $0.2 million primarily due to fl uctuations 

between the U.S. dollar and the Chinese Yuan and Mexi-

can Peso. The foreign currency-based transaction loss, 

$0.5 million, in 2004 was due primarily to the euro rate 

changes relative to other currencies in Europe. 

The provision for income taxes from continuing opera-

tions in 2005 and 2004 was $25.0 million and $21.1 mil-

lion, respectively. The effective tax rates were 35.3 and 

35.5 percent for 2005 and 2004, respectively. The effective 

tax rate differs from the United States statutory rate of 35 

percent, generally due to foreign income exclusion and 

R&D credits and due to the effects of state and foreign 

income taxes, net of federal tax benefi ts. 

Income from continuing operations for 2005 was $45.8 

million, or $1.97 per diluted share, compared to 2004 in-

come from continuing operations of $38.4 million, or $1.67 

per diluted share. Per share data for 2004 refl ects the 

Company’s two-for-one stock split effected in the form 

of a 100 percent stock distribution made on June 15, 2004.

Capital Resources and Liquidity

Cash fl ows from operations provide the principal 

source of current liquidity. Net cash fl ows provided by 

operating activities were $74.2 million and $57.5 mil-

lion in 2005 and 2004, respectively. The primary source 

of cash from operations was earnings. Signifi cant uses 

of operating cash fl ow in 2005 and 2004 were related to 

increases in inventory, $10.6 million and $1.2 million, 

respectively. Inventories increased signifi cantly in 2005 

as the Company increased fi nished goods availability for 
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distribution customers as a part of its new distribution 

channel strategy. Accounts receivable and accounts pay-

able and other accrued expenses were signifi cant sources 

of operating cash fl ow in 2005. Accounts receivable 

increases were primarily attributable to the timing of 

payments received from customers and increased sales 

during 2005. Accounts payable increases were primarily 

attributable to the timing of payments made to vendors 

and increased inventories during 2005. In 2004, a pay-

ment of $4.0 million was made to qualifi ed employee 

benefi t plans. 

Net cash fl ows used in investing activities were $63.5 

million and $30.4 million in 2005 and 2004, respectively. 

The Company paid $36.0 million for short-term invest-

ment securities, net of short-term investment securities 

sold in 2005. The Company paid an aggregate of $8.5 

million for acquisitions in 2005, net of cash acquired. 

The acquisitions consisted of $5.6 million for Phil-Tite 

and $2.9 million for an equity investment in Pioneer. The 

primary use of cash for investing activities in 2004 was 

additions to property, plant and equipment. Another use 

of cash in 2004 was for the acquisition of certain assets of 

JBD, Inc. for $9.3 million.

Net cash fl ows used in fi nancing activities were $9.0 

million and $7.1 million in 2005 and 2004, respectively. 

The Company paid $8.5 million and $6.8 million in 

dividends on the Company’s common stock in 2005 

and 2004, respectively. Another principal use of cash 

was purchases of Company common stock under the 

Company’s repurchase program. During 2005 and 2004, 

the Company repurchased 366,308 shares of its com-

mon stock for $13.8 million and 102,800 for $3.1 million, 

respectively. 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 2005 were $52.1 

million compared to $50.6 million at the end of 2004. 

Working capital increased $27.3 million in 2005 and the 

current ratio of the Company was 3.2 for 2005 compared 

to a current ratio of 3.1 at the end of 2004.

Principal payments of $1.0 million per year on the 

Company’s $20.0 million of unsecured long-term debt 

began in 1998 and will continue until 2008 when a 

balloon payment of $10.0 million will fully retire the 

debt. In September 2004, the Company entered into 

an unsecured, 60-month $80.0 million revolving credit 

agreement (the “Agreement”). The Agreement includes 

a facility fee of one-tenth of one percent on the commit-

ted amount. The Company had no outstanding borrow-

ings under the Agreement at December 31, 2005. The 

Company is subject to certain fi nancial covenants with 

respect to borrowings, interest coverage, working capi-

tal, loans or advances, and investments. The Company 

was in compliance with all debt covenants at all times in 

2005 and 2004.

At December 31, 2005, the Company had $3.6 million of 

commitments primarily for the purchase of machinery 

and equipment, and building expansions. Management 

believes that internally generated funds and exist-

ing credit arrangements provide suffi cient liquidity to 

meet these current commitments and existing debt, and 

fi nance business growth.

2006
Aggregate Contractual Obligations

Most of the Company’s contractual obligations to third 

parties are debt obligations. In addition, the Company 
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has certain contractual obligations for future lease pay-

ments, as well as purchase obligations. The payment 

schedule for these contractual obligations is as follows:
(In millions)

Total

Less 
Than 1 
Year

2–3 
Years

4–5 
Years

More 
Than 5 
Years

Debt $61.3 $11.0 $50.3 $ — $ —
Debt interest 5.7 3.3 2.4 — —
Capital leases 1.1 0.3 0.8 — —
Operating leases 22.4 5.3 7.1 3.1 6.9
Contingency from 
Healy acquisition 0.4 0.4 — — —

Purchase obligations 5.9 5.9 — — —
$96.8 $26.2 $60.6 $3.1 $6.9

Debt interest includes interest on the balance outstand-

ing under the Company’s fi xed-to-variable interest rate 

swap. Per the swap contract, the Company receives 

interest at a fi xed rate of 6.3 percent and pays interest 

at a variable rate based on the three month London 

Interbank Offered Rates (LIBOR) rate plus a spread. The 

average variable rate paid in 2006 was 7.9 percent. Debt 

interest also includes interest under the Company’s cur-

rent credit agreement. The average interest rate for 2006 

was 5.5 percent based on the LIBOR plus an interest 

spread. The remaining interest is calculated based on the 

fi xed rate of 6.3 percent for the Company’s long-term 

insurance company debt.

The Healy Systems stock purchase agreement provided 

for additional contingent payments of 5 percent of 

certain Healy Systems product sales over the next fi ve 

years, of which only one year could be estimated, there-

fore recognized and presented above. 

The Company also has pension and other post-retire-

ment benefi t obligations not included in the table above 

which will result in future payments. 

Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board 

(FASB) issued FASB Interpretation No. 48 “Accounting 

For Uncertain Tax Positions” (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 clarifi es 

the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recog-

nized in an enterprise’s fi nancial statements in accor-

dance with Statements of Financial Accounting Stan-

dards (SFAS) No. 109 “Accounting for Income Taxes.” 

It prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement 

attribute for the fi nancial statement recognition and 

measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be 

taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance 

on derecognition, classifi cation, interest and penalties, 

accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transi-

tion. FIN 48 is effective for fi scal years beginning after 

December 15, 2006. The Company reviewed the impact 

of FIN 48 on its fi nancial statements and does not believe 

the adoption of this standard will have a signifi cant 

impact on the Company’s results of operations, fi nancial 

position, or statement of cash fl ows. 

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157 “Fair 

Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 gives guidance for 

measuring assets and liabilities using fair value. Fair 

value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-

specifi c measurement, and sets out a fair value hierarchy 

with the highest priority being quoted prices in active 

markets. The fair value measurements are disclosed by 

level within that hierarchy. While the Statement does not 

add any new fair value measurements, it does change 

current practice. This statement is effective for fi nancial 

statements issued for fi scal years beginning after No-

vember 15, 2007, although earlier application is encour-

aged. The Company is currently evaluating the impact 
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of adopting SFAS No. 157 on its fi nancial statements, but 

does not believe the adoption of this standard will have 

a signifi cant impact on the Company’s results of opera-

tions, fi nancial position, or statement of cash fl ows. 

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting 

Bulletin (SAB) No. 108, “Financial Statements — Con-

sidering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements When 

Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial 

Statements.” SAB No. 108 addresses how a registrant 

should quantify the effect of an error on the fi nancial 

statements. The SEC concludes that a dual approach 

should be used to compute the amount of a misstate-

ment. Specifi cally, the amount should be computed 

using both a “rollover” (current year income statement 

perspective) and “iron curtain” (year-end balance sheet 

perspective) methods. SAB 108 is effective for fi scal 

years ending after November 15, 2006. The adoption of 

SAB 108 did not have a material impact on the Compa-

ny’s results of operations, fi nancial position, or state-

ment of cash fl ows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, 

“Employers’ Accounting for Defi ned Benefi t Pension 

and Other Postretirement Plans,” which required rec-

ognition of the funded status of defi ned benefi t pension 

and other postretirement plans, with a corresponding 

after-tax adjustment to accumulated other comprehen-

sive loss.  In 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 158.  

The adoption of SFAS No. 158, together with the annual 

remeasurement of our pension plans, resulted in a net of 

tax, $1.3 million, decrease in Shareholders’ equity. This 

decrease does not affect cash fl ows or the funded status 

of our benefi t plans.  

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The 

Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial 

Liabilities.” SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to 

measure many fi nancial instruments and certain other 

items at fair value that are not currently required to be 

measured at fair value.  SFAS No. 159 is effective for 

fi scal years beginning after November 15, 2007, with 

early adoption permitted provided the entity also elects 

to apply the provisions of SFAS No. 157.  The Company 

is currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS No. 

159 on its fi nancial statements. 

Critical Accounting Policies and 
Estimates

Management’s discussion and analysis of its fi nancial 

condition and results of operations are based upon the 

Company’s consolidated fi nancial statements, which 

have been prepared in accordance with accounting 

principles generally accepted in the United States of 

America. The preparation of these fi nancial statements 

requires management to make estimates and judgments 

that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 

revenues and expenses, and the related disclosure of 

contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, 

management evaluates its estimates, including those 

related to revenue recognition, allowance for doubtful 

accounts, accounts receivable, inventories, recover-

ability of long-lived assets, intangible assets, income 

taxes, warranty obligations, stock-based compensation, 

pension and other employee benefi t plan obligations, 

and contingencies. Management bases its estimates on 

historical experience and on other assumptions that are 

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 

results of which form the basis for making judgments 
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about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are 

not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results 

may differ from these estimates under different assump-

tions or conditions.

The Company’s critical accounting policies are identifi ed 

below:

Revenue Recognition:

Products are shipped utilizing common carriers direct 

to customers or, for consignment products, to customer-

specifi ed warehouse locations. Sales are recognized 

when the Company’s products are shipped direct or, in 

the case of consignment products, transferred from the 

customer-specifi ed warehouse location to the customer, 

at which time transfer of ownership and risk of loss pass 

to the customer. The Company records net sales rev-

enues after discounts at the time of sale based on specifi c 

discount programs in effect, historical data and 

experience.

Warranty Obligations:

Warranty terms are generally two years from date of 

manufacture or one year from date of installation. War-

ranty liability is recorded when revenue is recognized 

and is based on actual historical return rates from the 

most recent warranty periods. While the Company’s 

warranty costs have historically been within its calcu-

lated estimates, it is possible that future warranty costs 

could exceed those estimates.

Stock-Based Compensation:

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for 

stock-based employee compensation plans under the 

measurement and recognition provisions of Accounting 

Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for 

Stock Issued to Employees,” and related Interpretations, 

as permitted by SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-

Based Compensation.” Effective January 1, 2006, the 

Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions 

of SFAS No. 123(R), using the modifi ed prospective tran-

sition method. Under that transition method, compen-

sation expense recognized includes: (a) compensation 

expense for all stock-based payments granted prior to, 

but not yet vested as of, January 1, 2006, based on the 

grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the 

original provisions of SFAS No. 123; and (b) compen-

sation expense for all stock-based payments granted 

on or after January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair 

value estimated in accordance with the provisions of 

SFAS No. 123(R). 

The fair value of each option award, both before and 

after the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), is estimated on 

the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option valua-

tion model with a single approach and amortized using 

a straight-line attribution method over the option’s 

vesting period. Options granted to retirement-eligible 

employees were immediately expensed. In 2005, this 

amount was disclosed in the pro-forma exhibit while 

in 2006 it was recognized as an expense. The Company 

uses historical data to estimate the expected volatility of 

its stock; the weighted average expected life, the period 

of time options granted are expected to be outstanding; 

and its dividend yield. The risk-free rates for periods 

within the contractual life of the option are based on 

the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the 

grant.

The assumptions used for the Black-Scholes model to 
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determine the fair value of options granted during 2006 

is as follows:

Risk-free interest rate 4.54%
Dividend yield .70–.74%
Weighted-average dividend yield .707%
Volatility factor .3553–.3768
Weighted-average volatility .359
Expected term 4–5 years
Forfeiture rate 5.44%

In accordance with SFAS No. 123, for periods prior to 

January 1, 2006, the Company disclosed pro forma net 

income or loss and pro forma net income or loss per 

share as if the fair value-based method in measuring 

compensation expense for its stock-based incentive pro-

grams had been applied. For purposes of this pro forma 

disclosure, the value of the options is estimated using a 

Black-Scholes option-pricing formula and amortized to 

expense over the options’ vesting periods.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for 

Uncollectible Accounts:

Accounts receivable is comprised of balances due from 

customers net of estimated allowances for uncollectible 

accounts. In determining allowances, historical trends 

are evaluated and economic conditions and specifi c 

customer issues are reviewed to arrive at appropriate 

allowances. Allowance levels change as customer-spe-

cifi c circumstances and the other analysis areas noted 

above change. Differences may result in the amount 

for allowances if actual experience differs signifi cantly 

from management estimates; such differences have not 

historically been material.

Inventory Valuation:

The Company uses certain estimates and judgments to 

value inventory. Inventory is recorded at the lower of 

cost or market. The Company reviews its inventories for 

excess or obsolete products or components. Based on an 

analysis of historical usage and management’s evalua-

tion of estimated future demand, market conditions and 

alternative uses for possible excess or obsolete parts, 

reserves are recorded or changed. Signifi cant fl uctua-

tions in demand or changes in market conditions could 

impact management’s estimates of necessary reserves. 

Excess and obsolete inventory is periodically disposed 

through sale to third parties, scrapping or other means, 

and the reserves are appropriately reduced. Differences 

may result in the amount for reserves if actual experi-

ence differs signifi cantly from management estimates; 

such differences have not historically been material.

Business Combinations:

The Company follows the guidance under SFAS No. 141, 

“Business Combinations.” The acquisition purchase 

price is allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities 

assumed based upon their respective fair values and 

subject to change during the twelve-month period sub-

sequent to the acquisition date. The Company utilizes 

management estimates and independent third-party 

valuation fi rms to assist in determining the fair values of 

assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Such estimates 

and valuations require the Company to make signifi cant 

assumptions, including projections of future events and 

operating performance.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets:

 Goodwill is not amortized; however it is tested for im-

pairment annually or more frequently whenever events 

or changes in circumstances indicate that the asset may 

be impaired. The Company performs impairment testing 

for its reporting units using future cash fl ows based on 

management’s judgments and assumptions. An asset’s 

value is impaired if the estimate of the aggregate future 
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cash fl ows, undiscounted and without interest charges, 

to be generated are less than the carrying amount of the 

reporting unit including goodwill. Such cash fl ows con-

sider factors such as expected future operating income 

and historical trends, as well as the effects of demand 

and competition. To the extent impairment has occurred, 

the loss will be measured as the excess of the carrying 

amount of the reporting unit including goodwill over 

the fair value. Such estimates require the use of judg-

ment and numerous subjective assumptions, which, if 

actual experience varies, could result in material differ-

ences in the requirements for impairment charges. 

Income Taxes:

Under the requirements of SFAS No. 109, “Accounting 

for Income Taxes,” the Company records deferred tax 

assets and liabilities for the future tax consequences at-

tributable to differences between fi nancial statement car-

rying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their 

respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities 

are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply 

to taxable income in the years in which those tempo-

rary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. 

Management judgment is required in determining the 

Company’s provision for income taxes, deferred tax 

assets and liabilities, which, if actual experience varies, 

could result in material adjustments to deferred tax as-

sets and liabilities. Valuation allowances are established 

when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the 

amounts expected to be realized.

Pension and Employee Benefi t Obligations:

With the assistance of the Company’s actuaries, the 

discount rate used to determine pension and post-re-

tirement plan liabilities is selected using a yield-curve 

approach. The yield-curve approach discounts each 

expected cash fl ow of the liability stream at an interest 

rate based on high quality corporate bonds. The present 

value of the discounted cash fl ows is summed and an 

equivalent weighted-average discount rate is calculated. 

A change in the discount rate selected by the Company 

of 25 basis points would result in a change of about $0.1 

million of employee benefi t expense. The Company 

consults with actuaries, asset allocation consultants and 

investment advisors to determine the expected long-

term rate of return on plan assets based on historical and 

projected rates of return on the types of assets in which 

the plans have invested. A change in the long-term rate 

of return selected by the Company of 25 basis points 

would result in a change of about $0.4 million of em-

ployee benefi t expense. 

Contingencies:

The Company is subject to the possibility of various loss 

contingencies arising in the ordinary course of business 

resulting from litigation, claims and other commitments, 

and from a variety of environmental and pollution con-

trol laws and regulations. The Company considers the 

likelihood of loss or the incurrence of a liability, as well 

as the ability to reasonably estimate the amount of loss, 

in determining loss contingencies. The Company accrues 

an estimated loss contingency when it is probable that 

a liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can 

be reasonably estimated. The amount of the reserves is 

determined, if any, with the assistance of outside legal 

counsel or other governmental regulatory agencies. 

The Company regularly evaluates current information 

available to determine whether the accruals should be 

adjusted. 
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Factors That May Affect Future 
Results

Any forward-looking statements contained herein in-

volve risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited 

to, general economic and currency conditions, vari-

ous conditions specifi c to the Company’s business and 

industry, market demand, competitive factors, changes 

in distribution channels, supply constraints, technology 

factors, litigation, government and regulatory actions, 

the Company’s accounting policies, future trends, and 

other risks. These risks and uncertainties may cause 

actual results to differ materially from those indicated 

by the forward-looking statements. Any forward-

looking statements included in this annual report are 

based upon information presently available. The 

Company does not assume any obligation to update 

any forward-looking information.

Quantitative and Qualitative 
Disclosures About Market Risk

The Company is subject to market risk associated with 

changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest 

rates. Foreign currency exchange rate risk is mitigated 

through several means: maintenance of local production 

facilities in the markets served, invoicing of customers in 

the same currency as the source of the products, prompt 

settlement of inter-company balances utilizing a global 

netting system and limited use of foreign currency de-

nominated debt. 

The results of operations are exposed to changes in inter-

est rates primarily with respect to borrowings under the 

Company’s revolving credit agreement (credit facility), 

where interest rates are tied to the prime rate or LIBOR. 

The average interest rate associated with borrowings 

against the credit facility paid by the Company in 2006 

was 5.5 percent. As of December 30, 2006, the Company 

had $50.0 million outstanding under the credit facility. 

The Company does not, as a matter of policy, enter into 

derivative contracts for speculative purposes. The inter-

est rate swap agreement entered into by the Company 

on September 24, 2003, had a notional amount of $10.0 

million under which the Company receives a fi xed rate 

of interest of 6.3 percent and pays interest at a variable 

rate based on a three month LIBOR rate plus a spread. 

The average rate associated with the swap agreement 

paid by the Company in 2006 was 7.9 percent. The 

fi xed-to-variable interest rate swap is accounted for as 

a fair value hedge, per SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for 

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” with 

effectiveness assessed based on changes in the fair value 

of the underlying debt using incremental borrowing 

rates currently available on loans with similar terms 

and maturities. The effective gain or loss on the interest 

rate swap and that of the underlying debt are equal and 

offsetting resulting in no net effect to earnings. Based 

on the Company’s variable rate debt at December 30, 

2006, a hypothetical 1.0 percent increase in interest rates 

would result in an annual increase in interest expense of 

approximately $0.6 million. 

Selected Financial Data 

The following selected fi nancial data should be read in 

conjunction with our consolidated fi nancial statements. 

The information set forth below is not necessarily indica-

tive of future operations.
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(In thousands, except per share amounts and ratios)  2006 (b) 2005 (c) 2004 (d) 

Operations:
  Net sales.................................................................................................... $557,948 $403,413 $370,070 
  Gross profi t ............................................................................................... 191,557 142,821 126,191 
  Interest expense ....................................................................................... 3,373 766 488 
  Income taxes ............................................................................................ 30,671 24,953 21,126 
  Income from continuing operations (a) ............................................... 56,762 45,796 38,368 
  Depreciation and amortization ............................................................. 17,989 14,971 15,143 
  Capital expenditures ............................................................................... 23,190 17,845 21,110 

Balance sheet:
  Working capital (h) ................................................................................. $123,833 $138,998 $111,697 
  Property, plant and equipment, net ...................................................... 115,976 95,732 95,924 
  Total assets ............................................................................................... 526,925 379,762 333,473 
  Long-term debt ........................................................................................ 51,043 12,324 13,752 
  Shareowners’ equity ............................................................................... 345,831 267,562 234,333 

Other data:
  Income, from continuing operations, to sales ..................................... 10.2% 11.4% 10.4% 
  Income, from continuing operations, to average total assets ........... 12.5% 12.8% 12.5% 
  Current ratio (i) ........................................................................................ 2.3 3.2 3.1 
  Number of common shares outstanding ............................................. 23,009 22,485 22,041 

Per share:
  Market price range
    High ...................................................................................................... $    62.95 $    45.29 $ 43.48 
    Low ........................................................................................................ 38.70 34.54 29.01 
  Income, from continuing operations,  
    per weighted-average common share .............................................. 2.49 2.06 1.75 
  Income, from continuing operations, per weighted-average 
    common share, assuming dilution ................................................... 2.43 1.97 1.67 
  Book value (j) ........................................................................................... 14.84 11.54 10.17 
  Dividends per common share ............................................................... 0.43 0.38 0.31 

(a)  The 2006-2002 fi nancial presentation excludes the sales and earnings of the Engineered Motor Products Division 
(EMPD) which was sold during the fourth quarter of 2006.

(b)  Includes the results of operations of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Little Giant Pump Company and Healy 
Systems, Inc., since their acquisition in the second and third quarter of 2006, respectively. 

(c)  Includes the results of operations of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Phil-Tite Enterprises, and the effect of 
an equity investment in Pioneer Pump, Inc., both acquired in the third quarter of 2005.

(d)  Includes the results of operations of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Franklin Pump Systems, since the 
acquisition of certain assets of JBD, Inc. in the third quarter of 2004.

Ten Year Financial Summary (a)
Franklin Electric Co., Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
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2003 2002 (e) 2001 2000 (f) 1999  1998 1997 (g)

$325,529 $319,025 $322,908 $325,731 $293,236 $272,533 $303,298
106,670 99,707 92,871 85,186 84,171 79,955 85,533

1,107 1,317 1,193 1,111 1,317 1,364 1,435
16,950 17,730 16,235 13,683 15,591 15,237 15,004
34,649 31,318 27,150 22,226 26,805 24,784 25,505
13,748 12,878 12,660 10,839 7,460 6,687 7,628
15,261 15,568 6,709 14,108 13,691 24,601 8,598

$ 82,640 $ 62,762 $ 69,158 $ 54,897 $ 56,886 $ 61,878 $ 87,973
83,916 76,033 58,839 64,604 57,047 51,461 32,357

281,971 258,583 195,643 197,179 176,101 167,590 163,110
14,960 25,946 14,465 15,874 17,057 18,089 19,163

192,938 153,138 123,269 115,998  96,293  91,597  92,841

10.6% 9.8% 8.4% 6.8% 9.1% 9.1% 8.4%
12.8% 13.8% 13.8% 11.9% 15.6% 15.0% 15.2%
2.8 2.2 2.7 2.2 2.2 2.4 3.2

21,828 21,648 21,336 22,016 21,652 22,296 23,388

$  032.80 $  030.27 $0021.32 $0  18.25 $   18.72 $0018.13 $0016.07
23.00 19.95 16.00 13.06 14.75 10.00 10.32

1.60 1.45 1.25 1.02 1.22 1.08 1.08

1.53 1.38 1.19 0.98 1.15 1.01 1.00
8.53 6.74 5.42 5.10 4.14 3.71 3.65

0000.27 0000.26 0000.24 00  0.22 00  0.20 0000.17 0000.15

(e)  Includes the results of operations of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries, Coverco S.r.l. and Intelligent Controls, 
Inc., since their acquisition in the fi rst and third quarters of 2002, respectively.

(f)  Includes the results of operations of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries, EBW, Inc. and Advance Polymer 
Technology, Inc., since their acquisition in the third quarter of 2000.

(g)  Includes 10 months of the results of operations of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Oil Dynamics, Inc., until its 
sale in the fourth quarter of 1997.

(h) Working capital = Current assets minus Current liabilities

(i) Current ratio = Current assets divided by Current liabilities

(j) Book value = Shareowners’ equity divided by weighted-average common shares, assuming full dilution 
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Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

System of Internal Control over Financial Reporting:
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an adequate system of internal control over fi nancial 
reporting of the Company. This system is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
fi nancial reporting and the preparation of fi nancial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

The Company’s internal control over fi nancial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to 
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refl ect the transactions and dispositions 
of the assets of the Company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of fi nancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of 
the Company; (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the fi nancial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over fi nancial reporting can provide only reasonable assurance with 
respect to fi nancial statement preparation and may not prevent or detect misstatements. Further, because of changes in 
conditions, effectiveness of internal controls over fi nancial reporting may vary over time.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the system of internal control over fi nancial reporting 
based on the framework in Internal Control-Integrated Framework (the “Framework”) issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Management did not include Little Giant Pump 
Company or Healy Systems in the scope of this evaluation and whose fi nancial statements collectively constitute 45 
percent and 33 percent of net and total assets, respectively, 15 percent of revenues, and 7 percent of net income of the 
consolidated fi nancial statement amounts as of and for the year ended December 30, 2006. Based on its evaluation, 
management concluded that the Company’s system of internal control over fi nancial reporting was effective as of 
December 30, 2006.

Our independent registered accounting fi rm has issued an audit report on management’s assessment of internal 
control over fi nancial reporting.



27

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Shareowners and Directors, Franklin Electric Co., Inc.:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control 
Over Financial Reporting, that Franklin Electric Co., Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) maintained effective 
internal control over fi nancial reporting as of December 30, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. As described 
in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, management excluded from its assessment 
the internal control over fi nancial reporting at Little Giant Pump Company, which was acquired on April 21, 2006 and 
Healy Systems, Inc., which was acquired on September 15, 2006, and whose fi nancial statements collectively constitute 
45 percent and 33 percent of net and total assets, respectively, 15 percent of revenues, and 7 percent of net income of the 
consolidated fi nancial statement amounts as of and for the year ended December 30, 2006. Accordingly, our audit did 
not include the internal control over fi nancial reporting at Little Giant Pump Company and Healy Systems, Inc. The 
Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over fi nancial reporting and for its 
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over fi nancial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over fi nancial 
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
effective internal control over fi nancial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining 
an understanding of internal control over fi nancial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over fi nancial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the 
company’s principal executive and principal fi nancial offi cers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected 
by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of fi nancial reporting and the preparation of fi nancial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over fi nancial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refl ect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of fi nancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on 
the fi nancial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over fi nancial reporting, including the possibility of collusion 
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or 
detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over fi nancial 
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over fi nancial 
reporting as of December 30, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria established in Internal 
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. 
Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over fi nancial 
reporting as of December 30, 2006, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by 
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States), the consolidated fi nancial statements as of and for the year ended December 30, 2006 of the Company and 
our report dated February 26, 2007 expressed an unqualifi ed opinion on those fi nancial statements and included an 
explanatory paragraph regarding the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), Share-Based 
Payment, on January 1, 2006, and the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158, Employers’ 
Accounting for Defi ned Benefi t Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, on December 31, 2006.

Chicago, Illinois, February 26, 2007
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Shareowners and Directors, Franklin Electric Co., Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Franklin Electric Co., Inc. and subsidiaries (the 
“Company”) as of December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, and the related consolidated statements of income, 
shareowners’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash fl ows for each of the three years in the period ended 
December 30, 2006. These fi nancial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these fi nancial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the fi nancial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the fi nancial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and signifi cant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall fi nancial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated fi nancial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the fi nancial position of 
Franklin Electric Co., Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, and the results of their 
operations and their cash fl ows for each of the three years in the period ended December 30, 2006, in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Standards No. 123(R), Share-Based 
Payment, and on December 31, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defi ned Benefi t Pension and Other Postretirement Plans.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over fi nancial reporting as of December 30, 2006, 
based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 26, 2007 expressed an unqualifi ed opinion 
on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over fi nancial reporting and an 
unqualifi ed opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over fi nancial reporting.

Chicago, Illinois
February 26, 2007
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(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2006 2005 2004

Net sales.........................................................  $557,948 $403,413 $370,070  

Cost of sales...................................................  366,391 260,592 243,879  

Gross profi t ....................................................  191,557 142,821 126,191  

Selling and administrative expenses .........  102,478 70,799 60,413  

Restructure expense .....................................  — 1,920 5,536  

Operating income .........................................  89,079 70,102 60,242  

Interest expense ............................................  (3,373) (766) (488) 

Other income ................................................  1,791 1,200 219  

Foreign exchange income/(loss) ................  (64) 213 (479) 

Income before income taxes........................  87,433 70,749 59,494  

Income taxes .................................................  30,671 24,953 21,126  

Income from continuing operations ..........    56,762   45,796   38,368  

Discontinued operations .............................  381 344 (460)  

Income taxes .................................................  145 131 (175)  

Income/(loss) from discontinued 
 operations...................................................  236 213 (285)  

Net income ....................................................  $  56,998 $  46,009 $  38,083  

Income per share

 Basic continuing operations ....................  $      2.49 $      2.06 $      1.75  

 Basic discontinued operations ................  0.01 0.01 (0.02)  

      $      2.50 $      2.07 $      1.73  

 Diluted continuing operations ................  $      2.43 $      1.97 $      1.67  

 Diluted discontinued operations ............  0.01 0.01 (0.02)  

      $      2.44 $      1.98 $      1.65  

Dividends per common share ....................  $      0.43 $      0.38 $      0.31  

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Consolidated Statements of Income
Franklin Electric Co., Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
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Assets 

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2006 2005

Current assets:
 Cash and equivalents ...............................................................  $    33,956 $  52,136

 Investments ................................................................................  — 35,988

 Receivables (less allowances of $2,786 and $2,204, 
   respectively) ...........................................................................  52,679 30,165

 Inventories:
  Raw materials .........................................................................  39,195 25,267

  Work-in-process .....................................................................  14,414 10,647

  Finished goods .......................................................................  76,661 51,754

  LIFO reserve ...........................................................................  (18,707) (17,287)

            111,563 70,381

 Other current assets (including deferred income taxes
  of $14,914 and $10,744, respectively) ..................................  19,592 14,350

    Total current assets .............................................................  217,790 203,020

Property, plant and equipment, at cost:
 Land and buildings ..................................................................  56,352 53,106

 Machinery and equipment ......................................................  169,119 164,926

       225,471 218,032

    Less allowance for depreciation .......................................  (109,495) (122,300)

            115,976 95,732

Other assets (including deferred income taxes 
 of $1,269 and $0, respectively) ................................................  14,375 13,064

Intangible assets ...........................................................................  45,257 9,964

Goodwill ........................................................................................  133,527 57,982

Total assets ....................................................................................  $   526,925 $379,762

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
Franklin Electric Co., Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

          



31

Liabilities and Shareowners’ Equity 

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2006 2005

Current liabilities:

 Accounts payable .......................................................................  $  30,832 $  26,409

 Accrued liabilities ......................................................................  40,166 34,223

 Income taxes ...............................................................................  11,649 2,087

 Current maturities of long-term debt and 
  short-term borrowings ...........................................................  11,310 1,303

  Total current liabilities ...........................................................  93,957 64,022

Long-term debt ..............................................................................  51,043 12,324

Deferred income taxes ..................................................................  4,597 4,296

Employee benefi t plan obligations ..............................................  25,969 25,830

Other long-term liabilities ............................................................  5,528 5,728

Contingencies and commitments (note 16)

Shareowners’ equity:

 Common shares (45,000 shares authorized, $.10 par value)
  outstanding (23,009 and 22,485, respectively) ....................  2,301 2,249

 Additional capital ......................................................................  94,356 74,717

 Retained earnings ......................................................................  236,780 190,381

 Loan to ESOP trust.....................................................................  (200) (432)

 Accumulated other comprehensive income ..........................  12,594 647

  Total shareowners’ equity .....................................................  345,831 267,562

Total liabilities and shareowners’ equity ...................................  $526,925 $379,762

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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(In thousands) 2006 2005 2004

Cash fl ows from operating activities:
 Net income ...................................................................... $   56,998 $   46,009 $ 38,083
 Adjustments to reconcile net income to net 
  cash fl ows from operating activities:
  Depreciation and amortization ................................. 17,989 14,971 15,143
  Stock based compensation ......................................... 3,206 147 —
  Deferred income taxes ................................................ (9,933) 284 1,219
  Gain/loss on divestiture and disposals of 
   plant and equipment ............................................... (4,637) 174 187
  Changes in assets and liabilities, before the
   effect of acquisitions
   Receivables ............................................................... (5,380) 7,354 (1,243)
   Inventories ................................................................ (10,978) (10,642) (1,167)
   Accounts payable and other accrued expenses .. (4,540) 5,930 2,276
   Accrued income taxes ............................................. 15,012 8,076 5,029
   Excess tax from share-based compensation
    arrangements ........................................................ (5,743) — —
   Employee benefi t plans .......................................... 4,956 2,420 (3,491)
   Other, net .................................................................. (1,561) (559) 1,471
Net cash fl ows from operating activities ........................ 55,389 74,164 57,507

Cash fl ows from investing activities:
 Additions to plant and equipment .............................. (23,190) (17,845) (21,110)
 Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment ............... 343 1,073 29
 Additions to other assets ............................................... — (2,184) (10)
 Purchase of securities ..................................................... (63,500) (236,773) —
 Proceeds from sale of securities .................................... 99,488 200,785 —
 Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired........ (159,205) (8,509) (9,307)
 Proceeds from sale of business ..................................... 14,470 — —
Net cash fl ows from investing activities ......................... (131,594) (63,453) (30,398)

Cash fl ows from fi nancing activities:
 Proceeds from long-term debt ...................................... 130,000 — —
 Repayment of long-term debt ....................................... (81,296) (1,280) (1,553)
 Proceeds from issuance of common stock .................. 10,120 14,298 4,110
 Excess tax from share-based compensation
   arrangements .............................................................. 5,743 — —
 Purchases of common stock .......................................... (198) (13,775) (3,091)
 Reduction of loan to ESOP Trust .................................. 232 233 232
 Dividends paid ............................................................... (9,833) (8,447) (6,815)
Net cash fl ows from fi nancing activities ......................... 54,768 (8,971) (7,117)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash ......................... 3,257 (208) 650
Net change in cash and equivalents ................................ (18,180) 1,532 20,642
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year .................... 52,136 50,604 29,962
Cash and equivalents at end of year ............................... $   33,956 $   52,136 $ 50,604

(In millions)
Cash paid for income taxes ............................................... $    24.4 $    19.3 $   19.0
Cash paid for interest ........................................................ $     3.1 $     0.7 $    0.6

Non-cash items:
Payable to seller of Healy Systems, Inc.  ......................... $     3.0 $     — $    —
Additions to property, plant, and equipment, 
 not yet paid  ..................................................................... $     0.5 $     0.5 $    0.1
Receivable from sale of EMPD  ........................................ $     2.2 $     — $    —

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Franklin Electric Co., Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries



33

Consolidated Statements of Shareowners’ Equity 
and Comprehensive Income
Franklin Electric Co., Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

      Accumulated
 Common Common Additional Retained Loan to Other Comprehensive
 Shares Stock Capital Earnings ESOP Comprehensive Income
(In thousands) Outstanding    Trust Income (Loss)

Balance year end 2003 21,828 $2,182 $45,826 $139,057 $(897) $  6,770

Net income    38,083   $38,083
 Currency translation adjustment      6,935 6,935
 Minimum pension liability 
   adjustment, net of tax $141      (211) (211)
  Comprehensive income       $44,807
Dividends on common stock    (6,815)
Common stock issued 337 35 4,495
Common stock repurchased or
 received for stock options
 exercised (124) (13)  (3,768)
Tax benefi t of stock options
 exercised   2,422
Loan payment from ESOP     232
Balance year end 2004 22,041 $2,204 $52,743 $166,557 $(665) $13,494

Net income    46,009   $46,009
 Currency translation adjustment      (9,405) (9,405)
 Minimum pension liability 
   adjustment, net of tax $2,295      (3,442) (3,442)
  Comprehensive income       $33,162
Dividends on common stock    (8,447)
Common stock issued 795 81 14,855
Stock-based compensation 15 1 147
Common stock repurchased or
 received for stock options 
 exercised (366) (37)  (13,738)
Tax benefi t of stock options
 exercised   6,972
Loan payment from ESOP     233
Balance year end 2005 22,485 $2,249 $74,717 $190,381 $(432) $     647

Net income    56,998   $56,998
 Currency translation adjustment      8,306 8,306
 Minimum pension liability 
   adjustment, net of tax $(3,278)      4,917 4,917
  Comprehensive income       $70,221
SFAS 158 transition amount, 
 net of tax $851      (1,276)
Dividends on common stock    (9,833)
Common stock issued 513 50 10,690
Stock-based compensation 26 3 3,206
Common stock repurchased or
 received for stock options 
 exercised (15) (1)  (766)
Tax benefi t of stock options
 exercised   5,743
Loan payment from ESOP     232
Balance year end 2006 23,009 $2,301 $94,356 $236,780 $(200) $12,594

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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1.  Summary of Signifi cant Accounting 
Policies

Company—“Franklin Electric” or the “Company” shall 
refer to Franklin Electric Co., Inc. and its consolidated 
subsidiaries.

Fiscal Year—The Company’s fi scal year ends on the 
Saturday nearest December 31. The fi nancial statements 
and accompanying notes are as of and for the years 
ended December 30, 2006 (52 weeks), December 31, 2005 
(52 weeks), and January 1, 2005 (52 weeks) and referred 
to as 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

Principles of Consolidation—The consolidated fi nancial 
statements include the accounts of the Company and its 
subsidiaries. All signifi cant inter-company balances and 
transactions are eliminated.

Revenue Recognition—Products are shipped utilizing 
common carriers direct to customers or, for consignment 
products, to customer specifi ed warehouse locations. 
Sales are recognized when the Company’s products are 
shipped direct or, in the case of consignment products, 
transferred from the customer specifi ed warehouse 
location to the customer, at which time transfer of 
ownership and risk of loss pass to the customer. The 
Company records net sales revenues after discounts at 
the time of sale based on specifi c discount programs in 
effect, historical data, and experience.

Research and Development Expense—The Company’s 
research and development activities are charged to 
expense in the period incurred. The Company spent 
approximately $8.1 million in 2006, $5.6 million in 2005, 
and $4.2 million in 2004 on research and development.

Cash Equivalents—Cash equivalents consist of highly 
liquid investments which are readily convertible to cash, 
present insignifi cant risk of changes in value due to 
interest rate fl uctuations, and have original or purchased 
maturities of three months or less.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments—The carrying 
amounts for cash and equivalents, and short-term debt 
approximate fair value. The fair value of long-term debt 
is estimated based on current borrowing rates for similar 
issues and current exchange rates for foreign currency 
denominated amounts, which is not materially different 
from the recorded value. The Company’s off-balance 
sheet instruments consist of operating leases and an 
interest rate swap, which are not signifi cant.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Uncollectible 
Accounts—Accounts receivable are stated at estimated 
net realizable value. Accounts receivable is comprised 
of balances due from customers, net of earned discounts 
and estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts. 

Earned discounts are based on specifi c customer 
agreement terms. In determining allowances, historical 
trends are evaluated and economic conditions and 
specifi c customer issues are reviewed to arrive at 
appropriate allowances. Allowance levels change as 
customer-specifi c circumstances and the other analysis 
areas noted above change. Differences may result 
in the amount for allowances if actual experience 
differs signifi cantly from management estimates; such 
differences have not historically been material.

Inventories—Inventories are stated at the lower of cost 
or market. The majority of the cost of domestic and 
foreign inventories is determined using the fi rst-in, 
fi rst-out (FIFO) method; a portion of domestic inventory 
costs are determined using the last-in, fi rst-out (LIFO) 
method. Inventories stated on the LIFO method were 
approximately 15.7 percent and 31.5 percent of total 
inventories in 2006 and 2005, respectively. The Company 
reviews its inventories for excess or obsolete products 
or components. Based on an analysis of historical usage 
and management’s evaluation of estimated future 
demand, market conditions and alternative uses for 
possible excess or obsolete parts, reserves are recorded 
or changed.

Property, Plant and Equipment—Property, plant and 
equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation of plant and 
equipment is provided principally on a straight line 
basis over the estimated useful lives of 5 to 20 years 
for land improvements and buildings, 2 to 10 years for 
machinery and equipment. Maintenance, repairs, and 
renewals of a minor nature are expensed as incurred. 
Betterments and major renewals which extend the useful 
lives of buildings, improvements, and equipment are 
capitalized. Accelerated methods are used for income tax 
purposes. The Company reviews its property, plant and 
equipment for impairment whenever events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of 
such assets may not be recoverable. The Company’s 
depreciation expense was $15.8, $13.5, and $13.0 million 
in 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

Asset Retirement Obligations—The Company 
recognizes and reports obligations associated with 
tangible asset retirements that result from the 
acquisition, disposal, or normal operation of a long-lived 
asset. Obligations are recognized and recorded at fair 
value in the period in which the obligation is incurred 
and a reasonable estimate made, or recognized when a 
reasonable estimate can be made.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets—The Company 
performs goodwill impairment testing for its reporting 
units, annually or more frequently whenever events or 
a change in circumstances indicate that the asset may 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Franklin Electric Co., Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
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be impaired. Goodwill is then adjusted in the event 
of impairment. Amortization is recorded for other 
intangible assets with defi nite lives.

Derivatives and Hedging—On September 24, 2003, 
the Company entered into a fi xed-to-variable interest 
rate swap to achieve a desired proportion of variable 
vs. fi xed rate debt. The fi xed-to-variable interest rate 
swap is accounted for as a fair value hedge, per SFAS 
No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and 
Hedging Activities,” with effectiveness assessed based 
on changes in the fair value of the underlying debt using 
incremental borrowing rates currently available on loans 
with similar terms and maturities. The effective gain or 
loss on the interest rate swap and that of the underlying 
debt are equal and offsetting resulting in no net effect to 
earnings.

Warranty Obligations—Warranty terms are generally 
two years from date of manufacture or one year from 
date of installation. Warranty liability is recorded when 
revenue is recognized and is based on actual historical 
return rates from the most recent warranty periods.

Income Taxes—Income taxes are accounted for in 
accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for 
Income Taxes.” Under this method, deferred tax assets 
and liabilities are determined based on the difference 
between the fi nancial statement and tax basis of 
assets and liabilities and net operating loss and credit 
carryforwards using enacted tax rates in effect for the 
year in which the differences are expected to reverse. 
Valuation allowances are established when necessary to 
reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts expected to be 
realized.

Stock-Based Compensation—Prior to January 1, 2006, 
the Company accounted for stock-based employee 
compensation plans under the recognition and 
measurement provisions of Accounting Principles Board 
(APB) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to 
Employees,” and related Interpretations, as permitted 
by SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based 
Compensation.” Effective January 1, 2006, the Company 
adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 
No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” using the modifi ed-
prospective-transition method. Under that transition 
method, compensation cost recognized in 2006 includes: 
(a) compensation cost for all share-based payments 
granted prior to, but not yet vested as of January 1, 
2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in 
accordance with the original provisions of SFAS No. 123, 
and (b) compensation cost for all share-based payments 
granted subsequent to January 1, 2006, based on the 
grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the 
provisions of SFAS No. 123(R). Results for prior periods 
have not been restated.

For pro forma information regarding net income 
and earnings per share, the fair value for the options 
awarded in 2005 and 2004, for all fi xed stock option 
plans was estimated as of the date of the grant using 
a Black-Scholes option valuation model. The Black-
Scholes option valuation model used by the Company 
was developed for use in estimating the fair value 
of fully tradable options which have no vesting 
restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, 
option valuation models require the input of highly 
subjective assumptions including the expected stock 
price volatility.

Earnings Per Common Share—Basic and diluted 
earnings per share are computed and disclosed under 
SFAS No. 128, “Earnings Per Share.” Earnings per share 
are based on the weighted-average number of common 
shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per share is 
computed based upon earnings applicable to common 
shares divided by the weighted-average number of 
common shares outstanding during the period adjusted 
for the effect of other dilutive securities.

Translation of Foreign Currencies—All assets and 
liabilities of foreign subsidiaries whose functional 
currency is other than the U.S. dollar are translated 
at year end exchange rates. All revenue and expense 
accounts are translated at average rates in effect during 
the respective period. Adjustments for translating 
foreign currency assets and liabilities in U.S. dollars 
are included as a component of other comprehensive 
income. Transaction gains and losses that arise from 
exchange rate fl uctuations are included in the results of 
operations in “Other income,” as incurred.

Signifi cant Estimates and Assumptions—The 
preparation of fi nancial statements in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States requires management to make signifi cant 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
fi nancial statements and the reported amounts of 
expenses during the reporting periods. Signifi cant 
estimates and assumptions by management affect 
accrued expenses, stock-based compensation, pension, 
goodwill impairment, long-lived assets and inventory 
valuation.

Although the Company regularly assesses these 
estimates, actual results could differ materially from 
these estimates. The Company bases its estimates on 
historical experience and various other assumptions that 
it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Reclassifi cations—All share and per share data included 
in these fi nancial statements refl ect the Company’s two-
for-one stock splits effected in the form of a 100 percent 
stock distribution made on June 15, 2004.
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2. Accounting Pronouncements
In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(FASB) issued FASB Interpretation No. 48 “Accounting 
For Uncertain Tax Positions” (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 
clarifi es the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes 
recognized in an enterprise’s fi nancial statements 
in accordance with SFAS No. 109 “Accounting for 
Income Taxes.” It prescribes a recognition threshold 
and measurement attribute for the fi nancial statement 
recognition and measurement of a tax position taken 
or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also 
provides guidance on de-recognition, classifi cation, 
interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, 
disclosure, and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fi scal 
years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company 
reviewed the impact of FIN 48 on its fi nancial statements 
and does not believe the adoption of this standard will 
have a signifi cant impact on the Company’s results of 
operations, fi nancial position, or statement of cash fl ows. 

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157 “Fair 
Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 gives guidance for 
measuring assets and liabilities using fair value. Fair 
value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-
specifi c measurement, and sets out a fair value hierarchy 
with the highest priority being quoted prices in active 
markets. The fair value measurements are disclosed 
by level within that hierarchy. While the Statement 
does not add any new fair value measurements, it does 
change current practice. This statement is effective for 
fi nancial statements issued for fi scal years beginning 
after November 15, 2007, although earlier application 
is encouraged. The Company is currently evaluating 
the impact of adopting SFAS No. 157 on its fi nancial 
statements, but does not believe the adoption of 
this standard will have a signifi cant impact on the 
Company’s results of operations, fi nancial position, or 
statement of cash fl ows. 

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting 
Bulletin No. 108, “Financial Statements — Considering 
the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements When 
Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial 
Statements” (“SAB 108”). SAB 108 addresses how a 
registrant should quantify the effect of an error on the 
fi nancial statements. The SEC concludes that a dual 
approach should be used to compute the amount of 
a misstatement. Specifi cally, the amount should be 
computed using both a “rollover” (current year income 
statement perspective) and “iron curtain” (year-end 
balance sheet perspective) methods. SAB 108 is effective 
for fi scal years ending after November 15, 2006. The 
adoption of SAB 108 did not have a material impact on 
the Company’s results of operations, fi nancial position, 
or statement of cash fl ows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, 
“Employers’ Accounting for Defi ned Benefi t Pension 
and Other Postretirement Plans,” which required 
recognition of the funded status of defi ned benefi t 
pension and other postretirement plans, with a 
corresponding after-tax adjustment to accumulated 
other comprehensive loss. In 2006, the Company 
adopted SFAS No. 158. The adoption of SFAS No. 158, 
together with the annual remeasurement of our pension 
plans, resulted in a net of tax, $1.3 million, decrease in 
Shareholders’ equity. This decrease does not affect cash 
fl ows or the funded status of our benefi t plans. 

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The 
Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities.” SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to 
measure many fi nancial instruments and certain other 
items at fair value that are not currently required to be 
measured at fair value. SFAS No. 159 is effective for 
fi scal years beginning after November 15, 2007, with 
early adoption permitted provided the entity also elects 
to apply the provisions of SFAS No. 157. The Company 
is currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS No. 
159 on its fi nancial statements.

3. Acquisitions
During April 2006, the Company completed its 
acquisition of all of the outstanding shares of capital 
stock of Little Giant Pump Company (“Little Giant”) 
from Tecumseh Products Company for a cash purchase 
price of $120.8 million, excluding direct transaction 
costs and subject to a fi nal post-closing working capital 
adjustment. Transaction costs, approximately $2.4 
million, and the fi nal post-closing working capital 
adjustment, approximately $0.7 million, are included 
in the purchase accounting calculations under the 
guidance of SFAS No. 141 “Business Combinations.” 
Accordingly, a portion of the aggregate purchase price 
has been allocated to net assets acquired based on a 
fair market valuation. The initial excess purchase price 
over fair value of the net assets acquired, $82.6 million 
originally recorded as goodwill, has been adjusted to 
$47.3 million for the fair market values assigned to 
fi xed assets, customer relationships, technology and 
other intangible assets. Certain due to values assigned, 
within property, plant and equipment, are considered 
preliminary estimates and will be adjusted as additional 
information is received and valuation assessments are 
completed. The $47.3 million recorded as goodwill, will 
be deductible for tax purposes.

The purchase price assigned to each major asset and 
liability of Little Giant Pump Company is as follows:

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(In millions) 
Assets:
 Current assets  $ 45.6
 Property, plant and equipment  13.4
 Intangible assets   31.2
 Goodwill  47.3
 Other assets     0.2
  Total assets  137.7
Less liabilities    (13.8)
Total purchase price  $123.9

Little Giant’s results of operations were included in the 
Company’s consolidated statement of income, from the 
acquisition date through the year ended December 30, 
2006.

During September 2006, the Company acquired Healy 
Systems, Inc. (“Healy Systems”) in a stock purchase 
transaction for a cash purchase price of $35.1 million, 
excluding direct transaction costs and a post-closing 
working capital adjustment. The purchase agreement 
provides for additional payments of 5 percent of certain 
Healy Systems product sales over the next fi ve years. 
The transaction costs, approximately $0.3 million, 
and the preliminary post closing working capital 
adjustment, approximately $2.6 million are included 
in the total purchase accounting calculations under the 
guidance of SFAS No. 141 “Business Combinations.” The 
purchase price has been allocated to net assets based on 
preliminary estimated fair values. The Company will 
complete an independent fair market valuation in 2007. 
The excess of purchase price over preliminary estimated 
fair value of the net assets acquired, $26.4 million, has 
been recorded as goodwill. No portion of the $26.4 
million, recorded as goodwill, will be deductible for tax 
purposes.

The purchase price assigned to each major asset and 
liability of Healy Systems, Inc. is as follows:

(In millions) 
Assets:
 Current assets  $ 8.1
 Property, plant and equipment  2.0
 Intangible assets   6.0
 Goodwill   26.4
  Total assets  42.5
Less liabilities:
 Current liabilities   (1.7)
 Deferred income taxes     (2.4)
Total purchase price  $38.4

Healy Systems results of operations were included in the 
Company’s consolidated statement of income, from the 
acquisition date through the year ended December 30, 
2006.

Pro forma Results of Operations
The following unaudited pro forma statements give 
effect to the acquisition of Little Giant Pump Company 
and Healy Systems, by the Company. The unaudited 
pro forma combined condensed statements of income 
for 2006 and 2005 give effect to the acquisition of 

Little Giant Pump Company and Healy Systems as if 
the acquisitions had occurred at the beginning of the 
periods reported. These unaudited pro forma combined 
condensed fi nancial statements are prepared for 
informational purposes only and are not necessarily 
indicative of actual results or fi nancial position that 
would have been achieved had the acquisitions of 
Little Giant and Healy Systems been consummated on 
the dates indicated and are not necessarily indicative 
of future operating results or fi nancial position of the 
consolidated companies. The unaudited pro forma 
combined condensed fi nancial statements do not give 
effect to any cost savings or incremental costs that 
may result from the integration of Little Giant Pump 
Company and Healy Systems with the Company.

Franklin Electric Co., Inc.
Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated 
Statements of Income

(In millions, except per share amounts)   2006 2005  

Net sales $615.7 $529.6
Net income $ 59.3 $ 52.8

Per share data:
 Basic earnings per share $2.60 $2.38

 Diluted earnings per share $2.55 $2.28

4. Discontinued Operations
During December 2006, the Company sold its 
Engineered Motor Products Division, (“EMPD”) for an 
approximate $16.6 million selling price. Representing 
less than 10 percent of the Company’s consolidated 
sales, the Company no longer considered EMPD to be a 
part of its core operations. Thus future growth potential 
would be limited. This transaction was recognized 
in accordance to the guidance within SFAS No. 144 
“Accounting for the Impairment and/or Disposal of 
Long-Lived Assets.”

The selling price included an initial sales price of $16.0 
million and a preliminary working capital adjustment of 
$0.6 million. Net book value of the disposed assets was 
$11.9 million, including $14.5 million in total assets offset 
by $2.5 million in assumed liabilities. The Company 
realized a net book gain of $4.7 million. Divestiture 
expenses, incurred by the Company, of $0.8 million and 
$4.6 million for a one-time pension cost adjustment were 
recognized, offsetting the $4.7 million gain, resulting 
in a net pre-tax loss of $0.8 million. The net pre-tax 
loss is included in the statement of income, as part of 
discontinued operations.

Net sales for discontinued operations, were $36.8 
million, $36.1 million, and $34.2 million, for 2006, 2005, 
and 2004, respectively. The income/loss before tax, 
related to discontinued operations, was $0.4 million, 
$0.3 million, and ($0.5) million, for 2006, 2005, and 2004 
respectively.
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5. Investments
As of December 30, 2006, the Company held no 
investments in fi nancial securities. As of December 31, 
2005, the Company held $36.0 million of investments in 
fi nancial securities. Income generated from investments 
was recorded as “Other income,” in the Company’s 
statement of income. Cash paid for these securities and 
proceeds from the sale of these securities was included 
as part of the “Cash fl ows from investing activities” 
section in the Company’s statement of cash fl ows.

The Company holds a 35 percent equity interest, in 
Pioneer Pump, Inc., which is accounted for using 
the equity method and is included as part of “Other 
assets” in the balance sheet. The carrying amount of the 
investment is adjusted for the Company’s proportionate 
share of earnings, losses, and dividends. At December 
30, 2006, the carrying value of the investment was 
$6.1 million. At December 31, 2005, the carrying value 
of the investment was $6.0 million. The Company’s 
proportionate share of Pioneer Pump, Inc. earnings, 
included in “Other income” in the Company’s results of 
operations, was $0.7 million for 2006 and $0.1 for 2005.

6.  Goodwill and Other Intangible 
Assets

The Company uses the purchase method of accounting 
for business combinations, in accordance with SFAS 
Nos. 141 and 142, “Business Combinations” and 
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” respectively. 
During the fourth quarter of each year, the Company 
performs its annual impairment testing required by 
SFAS No. 142, unless events or circumstances indicate 
earlier impairment testing. No impairment loss was 
recognized for 2006, 2005, or 2004.

The carrying amount of the Company’s intangible assets 
and goodwill include:

(In millions)   2006 2005 
Amortized intangibles 
 Patents $  6.3 $ 5.9
  Accumulated amortization (2.8) (2.0)
 Supply agreements 7.2 10.0
  Accumulated amortization (4.3) (6.6)
 Technology 3.8 2.7
  Accumulated amortization  (0.3) (0.1)
 Customer relationships 26.8 0.0
  Accumulated amortization  (0.8) 0.0
 Other  1.7 1.5
  Accumulated amortization    (1.6)   (1.4)
     36.0 10.0
Unamortized intangibles 
 Trade names    9.3   0.0
Total intangibles $ 45.3 $10.0

Goodwill $133.5 $58.0

The weighted average years over which each intangible 
class is amortized is as follows:

Class Years

Patents 17
Supply Agreements 6
Technology 15
Customer Relationships 20
Other 8

Amortization expense related to intangible assets for 
the twelve months ended December 30, 2006, December 
31, 2005, and January 1, 2005 was $2.2, $1.4, and $2.1 
million, respectively. Amortization expense for each of 
the fi ve succeeding years is projected as $2.7 million, 
$2.7 million, $2.6 million, $2.5 million and $2.4 million 
for fi scal 2007, 2008, 2009, 2010, and 2011, respectively.

In the second quarter 2006 acquisition of Little 
Giant Pump Company, $31.2 million was recorded 
as intangibles ($1.1 million technology, $9.3 million 
trade name, and $20.8 million customer relationships) 
and $47.3 million as goodwill. In the third quarter 
2006 acquisition of Healy Systems, Inc., $6.0 million 
was recorded as intangibles, classifi ed as customer 
relationships and subject to an independent fair market 
valuation, and $26.4 million as goodwill.

Other changes in the carrying amount of intangibles and 
goodwill refl ect foreign currency fl uctuations.

7. Employee Benefi t Plans
Defi ned Benefi t Plans—As of December 30, 2006, the 
Company maintained three domestic pension plans 
and one German pension plan. The Company uses a 
December 31 measurement date for its plans. In 2006, 
the Company adopted SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ 
Accounting for Defi ned Benefi t Pension and Other 
Postretirement Plans.”

The following table sets forth aggregated information 
related to the Company’s pension benefi ts and other 
postretirement benefi ts, including changes in the benefi t 
obligations, changes in plan assets, funded status, and 
amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet, 
amounts recognized in Other Comprehensive Income, 
and actuarial assumptions:

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(In millions) Pension Benefi ts Other Benefi ts
       2006 2005 2006 2005 
Accumulated benefi t obligation,
 end of year  $150.0  $145.1  $ 13.0  $   14.3

Change in benefi t obligation:
Projected benefi t obligation, 
 beginning of year $149.0 $141.3 $ 14.3 $   16.0
Service cost 4.7 3.9 0.3 0.4
Interest cost 8.1 7.7 0.8 0.8
Plan amendments — — — —
Actuarial gain (loss) (2.7) 5.6 (0.1) (1.4)
Settlements paid (0.2) (1.0) — —
Benefi ts paid (9.2) (7.4) (1.3) (1.5)
Liability (gain)/loss due to 
 curtailment* 0.5 — (1.2) —
Special termination benefi ts* 1.4 — 0.2 —
Exchange    1.2     (1.1)      —      —

Projected benefi t obligation, 
 end of year  $152.8 $149.0 $ 13.0 $   14.3
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of assets, 
 beginning of year $131.7 $133.9 $    — $    —
Actual return on plan assets 19.9 6.2 — —
Company contributions 1.7 1.6 1.3 1.5
Settlements paid (0.2) (1.0) — —
Benefi ts paid (9.2) (8.4) (1.3)  (1.5) 
Exchange    0.4     (0.6)      —      —
Fair value of assets, end of year $144.3 $131.7 $    — $    —

Funded status  $   (8.5) $  (17.3) $(13.0) $(14.3)
Amounts recognized in 
 statement of fi nancial position: 
Noncurrent assets $  6.0 N/A** $    — N/A**
Deferred tax asset — N/A** 1.4 N/A**
Current liabilities (0.3) N/A** (1.2) N/A**
Noncurrent liabilities   (14.2)   N/A**  (11.8)    N/A**
Net pension asset/(liability) 
 at end of year $   (8.5)   N/A** $(11.6)    N/A**

Amount recognized in other
 comprehensive income:
Net transition (asset)/obligation — N/A** 1.1 N/A**
Prior service cost (credit) 1.5 N/A** 0.6 N/A**
Net actuarial (gain)/loss    (1.5)   N/A**      0.4    N/A**
Total recognized in other 
 comprehensive income $   —   N/A** $  2.1    N/A**

 *  These items are primarily related to the divestiture of 
the Engineered Motor Products Division in 2006.

**  The requirements of SFAS No. 158 are not applied 
retrospectively and do not apply to disclosures for 
fi scal 2005.

Plans with accumulated benefi t obligation in excess of 
plan assets as of December 31:

(In millions) Pension Benefi ts Other Benefi ts
      2006  2005 2006 2005 
Projected benefi t obligation $115.2 $112.5 $13.0 $14.3
Accumulated benefi t
 obligation 113.8 110.5 13.0 14.3
Fair value of plan assets 100.8 91.7 — —

Actuarial assumptions used to determine benefi t 
obligations:

     Pension Benefi ts Other Benefi ts
      2006  2005 2006 2005 
Discount rate 5.85% 5.65% 5.85% 5.65%
Rate of increase in future 
 compensation 3-8.00% 3-8.00% 3-8.00% 3-8.00%
     (Graded) (Graded) (Graded) (Graded)

Actuarial assumptions used to determine periodic 
benefi t cost:

     Pension Benefi ts Other Benefi ts
      2006  2005 2006 2005 
Discount rate 5.65% 5.75% 5.65% 5.75%
Rate of increase in 
 future compensation 3-8.00% 3-8.00% 3-8.00% 3-8.00%
     (Graded) (Graded) (Graded) (Graded)
Expected long-term rate 
 of return on plan assets 8.50% 8.50% — —

The accumulated benefi t obligation for the Company’s 
qualifi ed defi ned benefi t pension plans was $135.1 
million and $131.1 million at December 31, 2006 and 
2005.

The following table sets forth aggregated net periodic 
benefi t cost for 2006, 2005, and 2004:

(In millions) Pension Benefi ts Other Benefi ts
     2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004 

Service cost $4.7 $3.9 $4.3 $0.3 $0.4 $0.4
Interest cost 8.1 7.7 7.5 0.8 0.8 0.9
Expected return on 
 assets (10.5) (10.3) (10.9) — — —
Amortization of transition 
 (asset) obligation — — — 0.5 0.5 0.5
Prior service cost 1.4 1.7 1.4 0.2 0.2 0.2
Loss/(Gain)  0.3  0.2   —  0.1  0.1  0.2
Net periodic benefi t cost $4.0 $3.2 $2.3 $1.9 $2.0 $2.2
Curtailment expense* 1.1 — — 1.9 — —
Special termination 
 benefi ts* 1.4 — — 0.2 — —
Settlement cost  0.3  0.3  0.3   —   —   —
Total net periodic benefi t 
 cost  $6.8 $3.5 $2.6 $4.0 $2.0 $2.2

*  These items relate to the divestiture of the Engineered 
Motor Products Division in 2006.

The estimated net actuarial loss, prior service cost, and 
transition obligation for the defi ned benefi t pension 
plans that will be amortized from accumulated other 
comprehensive income into net periodic benefi t cost 
during the 2007 fi scal year are $0.2, $1.2 and $0.0, 
respectively and for other benefi ts will be $0.0, $0.1 and 
$0.3, respectively.

The Company consults with actuaries, asset allocation 
consultants and investment advisors to determine 
the expected long- term rate of return on plan assets. 
Plan assets are invested in a diversifi ed portfolio 
of equity and fi xed-income securities in order to 
maximize the long-term return for a prudent level of 
risk. Furthermore, equity investments are diversifi ed 
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across growth, value, small and large capitalizations. 
Investment risk is measured and monitored on an 
ongoing basis through investment portfolio reviews, 
annual liability measurements, and periodic asset/
liability studies.

Risk tolerance is established through careful 
consideration of plan liabilities, plan funded status, 
plan liquidity needs and corporate fi nancial condition. 
Based on these analyses the Company has assumed the 
expected long-term rate of return on plan assets will be 
8.5 percent.

The qualifi ed plans asset allocations at December 31, 
2006, and 2005, by asset category are as follows:

(Percentages) Plan Assets at December 31
     2006 2005 
Equity securities 74 74
Fixed income securities  26  26
Total   100 100

Equity securities include Company stock of $18.9 million 
(13.0 percent of total plan assets) and $18.5 million (14.0 
percent of total plan assets) at December 31, 2006 and 
2005, respectively.

The Company’s German pension plan is partially 
funded with insurance contracts up to maximums 
established by German tax legislation. Benefi ts above 
the statutory maximums are recorded in the Company’s 
balance sheet.

One of the Company’s four pension plans covers certain 
management employees. The Company does not fund 
this plan, and its assets were zero in 2006 and 2005. The 
plan’s projected benefi t obligation and accumulated 
benefi t obligation were $5.6 million and $4.4 million, 
respectively, at December 31, 2006, and $6.1 million and 
$4.8 million, respectively, at December 31, 2005.

The Company estimates total contributions to the plans 
of $2.6 million in 2007.

The following benefi t payments, which refl ect expected 
future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid:

(In millions) Pension Other
     Benefi ts Benefi ts
2007   $13.0 $ 1.2
2008   8.6 1.2
2009   9.9 1.2
2010   9.3 1.1
2011   9.5 1.1
Years 2012 through 2016 53.5 5.0

The Company’s other postretirement benefi t plans 
provide health and life insurance benefi ts to domestic 
employees hired prior to 1992. The Company 
effectively capped its cost for those benefi ts through 
plan amendments made in 1992, freezing Company 
contributions for insurance benefi ts at 1991 levels for 

current and future benefi ciaries with actuarially reduced 
benefi ts for employees who retire before age 65.

The following table illustrates the effects of the 
application of SFAS No. 158 on individual line items in 
the consolidated balance sheets as of December 30, 2006 
for the Company.

 Incremental Effect of Applying SFAS No. 158
on Individual Line Items in the Statement of Financial Position

December 30, 2006
 Before  After 
 Application of Adjust- Application of
(In millions) SFAS No. 158 ments SFAS No. 158
Other assets $ 8.7 $ 5.7 $14.4

Accrued liabilities 38.8 1.4 40.2
Deferred income taxes 4.1 0.5 4.6
Employee benefi t plan
 obligation 20.9 5.1 26.0

Accumulated other 
 comprehensive income 13.9 (1.3) 12.6

Defi ned Contribution Plans—The Company maintains 
an integrated 401(k) and Employee Stock Ownership 
Plan (ESOP). In 1992, the ESOP Trustee acquired shares 
of Company common stock on the open market using 
the proceeds of a fi fteen-year, $3.0 million loan from the 
Company. Under the terms of the variable rate loan (6.31 
percent at December 31, 2006), principal plus interest 
is payable in equal annual installments. The shares of 
stock purchased with the loan proceeds are collateral for 
the loan and are considered outstanding for purposes of 
calculating earnings per share.

The Company contributes a portion of its 401(k) 
matching contribution as well as an additional annual 
contribution, both subject to the Company’s annual 
fi nancial results, to the ESOP Trust. The ESOP Trustee 
uses a portion of the Company’s contributions to 
make principal and interest payments on the loan. As 
loan payments are made, shares of common stock are 
released as collateral and are allocated to participants’ 
accounts. The balance of the Company’s contributions 
in cash or common stock is made to the Company 
stock fund of the 401(k) and ESOP Trusts, and allocated 
to participants’ accounts to satisfy the balance of the 
Company’s 401(k) matching contribution.

At December 30, 2006, 382,693 shares were allocated 
to the accounts of participants, 24,783 shares were 
committed to be released and allocated to the accounts 
of participants for service rendered during 2006, and 
24,783 shares were held by the ESOP Trust in suspense. 
The following table sets forth Company contributions to 
the integrated ESOP and 401(k) Plan.

(In millions)   2006 2005 2004 

Company contributions to 
 integrated plan $1.1 $0.6 $0.9

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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8. Accrued Liabilities
Accrued liabilities consist of:

(In millions)   2006 2005 
 
Salaries, wages, and commissions $14.6 $13.5
Product warranty costs 10.0 7.0
Insurance 6.3 5.2
Employee benefi ts 4.0 2.2
Other     5.3   6.3
     $40.2 $34.2

9. Income Taxes
Income before income taxes consisted of:

(In millions)   2006 2005 2004 

Domestic  $70.9 $54.9 $48.6
Foreign   16.5  15.9  10.9
Continuing operations  87.4  70.8  59.5
Discontinued operations   0.4   0.3   (0.5)
     $87.8 $71.1 $59.0

The income tax provision consisted of:

(In millions)   2006 2005 2004 

Current payable:
 Federal $28.6 $15.8 $13.1
 Foreign  7.0  6.6  5.0
 State   5.0  2.3  1.8
Deferred: 
 Federal  (7.1)  0.6  1.8
 Foreign  (0.7)  (0.8)  (0.7)
 State    (2.1)   0.5   0.1
Continuing operations  30.7  25.0  21.1
Discontinued operations   0.1   0.1   (0.2)
      $30.8 $25.1 $20.9

Signifi cant components of the Company’s deferred tax 
assets and liabilities were as follows:

(In millions)   2006 2005 

Deferred tax assets: 
 Accrued expenses and reserves $ 9.9 $ 5.7
 Compensation and employee benefi ts 12.8 10.1
 Other items   4.8    3.4
  Total deferred tax assets  27.5  19.2

Deferred tax liabilities:
 Accelerated depreciation on fi xed assets 8.6 10.4
 Amortization of intangibles 5.9 1.8
 Other items    1.4   0.6
  Total deferred tax liabilities  15.9  12.8

Net deferred tax assets $11.6 $ 6.4

The portions of current and non-current deferred tax 
assets and liabilities were as follows:

(In millions)        2006        2005 
     Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
     Tax Tax Tax Tax
     Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Current  $15.3 $ 0.4 $11.0 $ 0.3
Non-current  12.2  15.5   6.4  10.7
     $27.5 $15.9 $17.4 $11.0

The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets was not 
signifi cant in 2005.

The differences between the statutory and effective tax 
rates were as follows:

(Percentages)   2006 2005 2004 

U.S. Federal statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes, net of 
 federal benefi t 2.1 2.5 2.1
Extraterritorial income exclusion (0.6) (1.0) (1.8)
R&D tax credits (0.7) (0.5) (0.7)
Other items  (0.7)   (0.7)   0.9  
Effective tax rate 35.1% 35.3% 35.5%

10. Debt
Long-term debt consisted of:

(In millions)   2006 2005 

Insurance Company — 6.31 percent, 
 principal payments of $1.0 million 
 due in annual installments, with a 
 balloon payment of $10.0 in 2008 
 ($1.9 denominated in JPY at 12/30/06) $11.3 $12.3
Capital Leases 1.1 1.3
Credit Agreement — the average 
 interest rate for 2006 was 5.5 percent 
 based on the London Interbank Offered 
 Rates (LIBOR) plus an interest spread.    50.0      —
     62.4 13.6
Less Current Maturities  (11.3)    (1.3)
     $51.1 $12.3

The following debt payments are expected to be paid:

(In millions) Total 2007 2008 2009
Debt   $61.3 $11.0 $50.3 $ —
Capital leases   1.1   0.3   0.4  0.4
     $62.4 $11.3 $50.7 $0.4

On September 9, 2004, the Company entered into 
an unsecured, 60-month, $80.0 million revolving 
credit agreement. This agreement was amended and 
restated on December 14, 2006 to be an unsecured, 60-
month $120.0 million revolving credit agreement (the 
“Agreement”). The Agreement provides for various 
borrowing rate options including interest rates based 
on the London Interbank Offered Rates (LIBOR) plus 
interest spreads keyed to the Company’s ratio of debt 
to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and 
amortization (“EBITDA”). The Agreement contains 
certain fi nancial covenants with respect to borrowings, 
interest coverage, loans or advances and investments. 
The Company had outstanding borrowings of $50.0 
million under the Agreement at December 30, 2006. 
The Company also has certain overdraft facilities at its 
foreign subsidiaries, of which none were outstanding at 
December 30, 2006.

The Company was in compliance with all debt 
covenants, at all times, in 2006 and 2005.
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11. Interest Rate Risk
On September 24, 2003 the Company entered into a 
fi xed-to-variable interest rate swap to achieve a desired 
proportion of variable vs. fi xed rate debt. The fi xed-
to-variable interest rate swap is accounted for as a 
fair value hedge, per SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for 
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” with 
effectiveness assessed based on changes in the fair value 
of the underlying debt using incremental borrowing 
rates currently available on loans with similar terms 
and maturities. The effective gain or loss on the interest 
rate swap and that of the underlying debt are equal 
and offsetting resulting in no net effect to earnings. The 
fair value of this hedge instrument was $(0.3) million 
at December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, and is 
recorded in other assets and other long-term liabilities.

The swap contract has a notional amount of $10 million 
and matures on November 10, 2008. Per the terms of the 
swap contract the Company receives interest at a fi xed 
rate of 6.3 percent and pays interest at a variable rate 
based on the three month LIBOR rate plus a spread. The 
average variable rate paid by the Company in 2006 was 
7.9 percent. The differential in interest rates on the swap 
is recognized as an adjustment of interest expense over 
the term of the agreement.

12. Shareowners’ Equity
The Company had 23,009,513 shares of common 
stock (45,000,000 shares authorized, $.10 par value) 
outstanding at the end of 2006.

During 2006, 2005, and 2004, pursuant to a stock 
repurchase program authorized by the Company’s 
Board of Directors, the Company repurchased a total 
of 5,000 shares for $0.2 million, 366,308 shares for $13.8 
million and 102,800 shares for $3.1 million, respectively. 
All repurchased shares were retired.

During 2006 and 2004, under terms of a Company stock 
option plan, participants delivered 9,619 shares for $0.6 
million and 21,312 shares for $0.7 million, respectively, 
of Company common stock as consideration for stock 
issued upon the exercise of stock options. There were no 
such transactions in 2005. All of the shares received were 
from offi cers of the Company.

In 2006, 2005, and 2004, the Company recorded a $5.7 
million, $7.0 million and $2.4 million, respectively, as a 
reduction in tax liability and an increase to shareowners’ 
equity as a result of stock option exercises.

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), con-
sisting of the currency translation adjustment and the 
pension liability adjustment, was $14.5 million and $(2.1) 
million, respectively, at December 30, 2006, and $6.2 mil-
lion and $(5.6) million, respectively, at December 31, 2005.

13. Earnings Per Share
The following table sets forth the computation of basic 
and diluted earnings per share:

(In millions, except per share amounts) 2006 2005 2004 

Numerator:
 Income from continuing operations $56.8 $45.8 $38.4
 Income from discontinued operations   0.2   0.2  (0.3)
 Net income  $57.0 $46.0 $38.1

Denominator:
 Basic 
 Weighted-average common shares 22.8 22.2 22.0
 Diluted
 Effect of dilutive securities:
  Employee and director incentive 
   stock options and awards   0.5   1.0   1.1
 Adjusted weighted-average 
  common shares  23.3  23.2  23.1

 Basic earnings per share
 Basic from continuing operations $2.49 $2.06 $1.75
 Basic from discontinuing operations  0.01  0.01 (0.02)
 Total basic earnings per share $2.50 $2.07 $1.73

 Diluted earnings per share
 Diluted from continuing operations $2.43 $1.97 $1.67
 Diluted from discontinuing operations  0.01  0.01 (0.02)
 Total diluted earnings per share $2.44 $1.98 $1.65

Anti-dilutive stock options excluded   0.3   0.2   0.2
 Anti-dilutive stock options price
  range—low $36.97 $36.97 $29.95
 Anti-dilutive stock options price 
  range—high $45.90 $44.51 $32.51

14. Stock-based Compensation
Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for 
stock-based employee compensation plans under 
the recognition and measurement provisions of APB 
Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to 
Employees,” and related Interpretations, as permitted 
by SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based 
Compensation.” Effective January 1, 2006, the Company 
adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 
No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” using the modifi ed-
prospective-transition method. Under that transition 
method, compensation cost recognized in 2006 includes: 
(a) compensation cost for all share-based payments 
granted prior to, but not yet vested as of January 1, 
2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in 
accordance with the original provisions of SFAS No. 123, 
and (b) compensation cost for all share-based payments 
granted subsequent to January 1, 2006, based on the 
grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the 
provisions of SFAS No. 123(R). The total stock-based 
compensation recognized in 2006 and 2005 was $3.2 
million and $0.1 million, respectively. Results for prior 
periods have not been restated.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the Company 
presented all tax benefi ts of deductions resulting from 
the exercise of stock options as operating cash fl ows in 
the Statement of Cash Flows. SFAS No. 123(R) requires 
the cash fl ows resulting from the tax benefi ts resulting 
from tax deductions in excess of the compensation cost 
recognized for those options (excess tax benefi ts) to be 
classifi ed as fi nancing cash fl ows. The $5.7 million excess 
tax benefi t classifi ed as a fi nancing cash infl ow would 
have been classifi ed as an operating cash infl ow if the 
Company had not adopted SFAS No. 123(R), and is 
included in “Income taxes” in the Company’s statement 
of fi nancial position.

The following table illustrates the effect on net income 
and earnings per share if the Company had applied 
the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 
to options granted under the Company’s stock option 
plans in all periods presented. For purposes of this pro 
forma disclosure, the value of the options is estimated 
using a Black-Scholes option-pricing formula and 
amortized to expense over the options’ vesting periods.

(In millions, except per share amounts)   2005 2004 

Reported net income $46.0 $38.1
Add: Total fair value computed stock-
 based compensation, net of tax* 0.1 —
Deduct: Total fair value computed 
 stock-based compensation, net of tax*   (1.6)   (1.5)
Pro forma net income $44.5 $36.6
Earnings per share:
Basic—as reported $2.07 $1.73
Basic—pro forma $2.00 $1.67
Diluted—as reported $1.98 $1.65
Diluted—pro forma $1.92 $1.59
Assumptions used for the Black-Scholes Model
Risk-free interest rate 3.75% 3.60%
Dividend yield .77% .63%
Volatility factor .194 .181
Weighted average expected term 5.3 years 6 years

* Includes expense related to restricted stock reported in 
net income.

The Company has authorized the grant of options to 
purchase common stock and award shares of common 
stock of the Company to employees and non-employee 
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries under 
two stock plans. The plans and the original number of 
authorized shares available for grants are as follows:

 Authorized Shares
Franklin Electric Co., Inc. Stock Option Plan 3,600,000
Franklin Electric Co., Inc. Stock Plan—options 1,150,000
Franklin Electric Co., Inc. Stock Plan—stock awards 150,000

During 2005, all remaining authorized shares available 
for grant under the Franklin Electric Co., Inc. Stock 
Option Plan were awarded. On April 29, 2005, the 
Franklin Electric Co., Inc. Stock Plan (the “Stock Plan”) 
was approved by the Company’s shareholders. Under 
the Stock Plan, employees and non-employee directors 

may be granted stock options or stock awards. The 
Company currently issues new shares from its common 
stock outstanding balance to satisfy share option 
exercises and stock awards.

Stock Options:
Under each of the above plans, the exercise price of 
each option equals the market price of the Company’s 
common stock on the date of grant and the options 
expire ten years after the date of the grant. Generally, 
options granted to nonemployee directors vest 33 
percent a year and become fully vested and exercisable 
after three years. Options granted to employees 
vest at 20 or 25 percent a year and become fully 
vested and exercisable after fi ve years or four years, 
respectively. Subject to the terms of the plans, in general, 
the aggregate option price and any applicable tax 
withholdings may be satisfi ed in cash or its equivalent, 
or by the plan participant’s delivery of shares of the 
Company’s common stock owned more than six months, 
having a fair market value at the time of exercise equal 
to the aggregate option price and/or the applicable tax 
withholdings.

The fair value of each option award, both before and 
after the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), is estimated 
on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option 
valuation model with a single approach and amortized 
using a straight-line attribution method over the 
option’s vesting period. Options granted to retirement 
eligible employees were immediately expensed. In 
2005, this amount was disclosed in the pro-forma 
exhibit while in 2006 it is recognized as an expense. The 
Company uses historical data to estimate the expected 
volatility of its stock; the weighted average expected life, 
the period of time options granted are expected to be 
outstanding; and its dividend yield. The risk-free rates 
for periods within the contractual life of the option are 
based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the 
time of the grant.

The assumptions used for the Black-Scholes model to 
determine the fair value of options granted during 2006 
is as follows:

Risk-free interest rate 4.54%
Dividend yield .70–.74%
Weighted-average dividend yield .707%
Volatility factor .3553–.3768
Weighted-average volatility .359
Expected term 4–5 years
Forfeiture rate 5.44%
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A summary of the Company’s stock option plans 
activity and related information is as follows:

(Shares in thousands) Weighted-
      Weighted- Average Aggregate
      Average Remaining Intrinsic
      Exercise Contractual Value
Stock Options Shares Price Term (000s) 

Outstanding at 
 beginning of 2004 2,534  $18.93
Granted 199 30.57
Exercised (331) 13.66
Forfeited — —

Outstanding at 
 beginning of 2005 2,401 $20.61
Granted 183  40.93
Exercised (777)  18.39
Forfeited (14)  27.52
 
Outstanding at 
 beginning of 2006 1,793 $23.60
Granted 125 45.90
Exercised (509) 20.69
Forfeited   (11) 25.22
Outstanding at 
 end of period 1,398 $26.65 5.58 $34,602
Expected to vest after
 applying forfeiture rate 1,344 $26.32 5.50 $33,687
Vested and exercisable 
 at end of period 842 $21.82 4.37 $24,905

       2006 2005 2004
Weighted average grant-date 
 fair value of options $16.43 $9.60 $7.47

(In millions)
Intrinsic value of options exercised $  2.7 $ 4.3 $ 1.3
Cash received from the 
 exercise of options $ 10.1 $14.3 $ 4.0
Fair value of shares vested $  2.7 $ 3.1 $ 3.3
Tax benefi t realized from 
 tax deductions $  5.7 $ 7.0 $ 2.4

There were no options granted during the fourth 
quarter. The total intrinsic value of options exercised 
during the fourth quarter of 2006 was $0.2 million. 
There were no share-based liabilities paid during the 
2006 fi scal year. As a result of the Company’s policy for 
issuing shares upon share option exercise, during the 
2007 fi scal year, the Company expects to repurchase up 
to 400,000 shares.

A summary of the Company’s nonvested shares activity 
and related information, for fi scal year ended December 
30, 2006 follows:

(Shares in thousands)
Weighted-Average 

Grant-Date
Nonvested Shares Shares Fair Value
Nonvested at beginning of period 736 $ 7.03
Granted 125 16.43
Vested  (294) 6.50
Forfeited  (11)   5.84
Nonvested at end of period  556 $ 9.47

As of December 30, 2006 there was $3.2 million of total 
unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested 
share-based compensation arrangements granted under 
the Plans. That cost is expected to be recognized over a 
weighted-average period of 1.7 years.

Stock Awards:
Under the Stock Plan, nonemployee directors and 
employees may be granted stock awards or grants of 
restricted shares of the Company’s common stock, 
vesting subject to the employees’ performance of certain 
goals. The Stock Plan is an amendment and restatement 
of the Franklin Electric Co., Inc. Key Employee 
Performance Incentive Stock Plan (the “Incentive Plan”), 
established in 2000. Prior to April 29, 2005, 16,300 shares 
had been awarded under the Incentive Plan and an 
additional 150,000 shares were authorized for stock 
awards under the Stock Plan.

The stock awards are granted at the market value on the 
date of grant and the stock awards cliff vest over either 
4 or 5 years and the attainment of certain performance 
goals. Dividends are paid to the recipient prior to 
vesting. Stock awards granted to retirement eligible 
employees were immediately expensed in 2006. There 
were no grants made to retirement eligible employees in 
2005.

A summary of the Company’s restricted stock award 
activity and related information, for the fi scal year 
ended December 30, 2006 follows:

(Shares in thousands)
Weighted-Average 

Grant-Date
Nonvested Shares Shares Fair Value
Nonvested at beginning of period 21 $40.82
Awarded 26 49.25
Vested  (6) 58.33
Forfeited  (1)  40.72
Nonvested at end of period  40 $43.39

As of December 30, 2006 there was $1.1 million of total 
unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested 
share-based compensation arrangements granted under 
the Plan. That cost is expected to be recognized over a 
weighted-average period of 3.1 years.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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15.  Segment and Geographic 
Information

Based on the management approach established by 
SFAS No. 131, “Disclosure About Segments of an 
Enterprise and Related Information,” the Company’s 
business consists of two operating segments based on 
the principal end market served: the Water Systems 
segment and the Fueling Systems segment.

The Water Systems segment designs, manufactures and 
sells motors, pumps, electronic controls and related 
parts and equipment primarily for use in submersible 
water and other fl uid system applications. The Fueling 
Systems segment designs, manufactures and sells 
pumps, electronic controls and related parts and 
equipment primarily for use in submersible fueling 
system applications. The Fueling Systems segment 
integrates and sells motors and electronic controls 
produced by the Water Systems segment.

Under SFAS No. 131’s aggregation criteria, the 
Company’s operating segments have been combined 
into a single reportable segment. As a result, there are 
no signifi cant differences between reportable segment 
fi nancial information and the Company’s consolidated 
results.

Net sales by product category, net of inter-company 
activity, are as follows:

       2006 2005 2004 

Water Systems $459.1 $334.5 $304.2
Fueling Systems   98.8   68.9   65.9
Total   $557.9 $403.4 $370.1

Geographical information

     Net Sales Long-lived assets
     2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004 

United States $364.7 $240.9 $221.6 $241.8 $116.5 $101.7
Foreign   193.2  162.5  148.5   66.1   60.2   65.6
Total   $557.9 $403.4 $370.1 $307.9 $176.7 $167.3

ITT Industries, Inc., and its various subsidiaries and 
affi liates, accounted for 11 percent, 16 percent and 20 
percent of the Company’s consolidated sales in 2006, 
2005, and 2004, respectively. Pentair Corporation and 
its various subsidiaries and affi liates, accounted for 12 
and 14 percent, of the Company’s consolidated sales 
in 2006 and 2005, respectively. Sta-Rite Industries, Inc., 
formerly a part of the manufacturing subsidiary of 
Wisconsin Energy Corporation, accounted for 22 percent 
of the Company’s consolidated sales in 2004. Sta-Rite 
Industries, Inc. was acquired by Pentair Corporation 
during 2004 and its sales have been included with 
Pentair’s sales for 2005 and 2006.

16. Contingencies and Commitments
The Company is defending various claims and legal 
actions, including environmental matters, which have 
arisen in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion 
of management, based on current knowledge of the facts 
and after discussion with counsel, these claims and legal 
actions can be successfully defended or resolved without 
a material adverse effect on the Company’s fi nancial 
position, results of operations, and net cash fl ows.

Total rent expense charged to operations for operating 
leases including contingent rentals was $5.8 million, 
$4.3 million and $3.4 million for 2006, 2005 and 2004, 
respectively.

The future minimum rental payments for non-cancelable 
operating leases as of December 30, 2006, are as follows: 
2007, $5.3 million; 2008, $4.3 million; 2009, $2.8 million; 
2010, $1.8 million; and 2011, $1.3 million. Rental 
commitments subsequent to 2011 are not signifi cant by 
year, but aggregated are $6.9 million in total.

At December 30, 2006, the Company had $5.9 million of 
commitments primarily for the purchase of machinery 
and equipment, and building expansions. 

Below is a table that shows the activity in the warranty 
accrual accounts:

(In millions)   2006 2005 

Beginning balance $ 7.0 $7.1
Accruals related to product warranties 7.9 5.4
Additions related to acquisitions 2.8 —
Reductions for payments made   (7.7)  (5.5)
Ending balance $10.0 $7.0

17.  Selected Quarterly Financial Data 
(Unaudited)

Unaudited quarterly fi nancial information for 2006 and 
2005 from continuing operations is as follows:

 (In millions, except per share amounts)
   Income Basic Diluted
  Gross Cont. Earnings Earnings
 Net Sales Profi t Ops. Per Share(a) Per Share
2006 
1st Quarter $101.7 $ 35.4 $ 9.7 $0.43 $0.42
2nd Quarter 152.2 52.6 16.5 0.72 0.70
3rd Quarter 156.1 53.6 16.3 0.71 0.70
4th Quarter  147.9   50.0  14.3  0.62  0.61
     $557.9 $191.6 $56.8 $2.48 $2.43
2005 
1st Quarter $ 73.5 $ 24.3 $ 5.9 $0.27 $0.25
2nd Quarter 114.3 40.2 13.5 0.61 0.59
3rd Quarter 109.9 39.1 13.2 0.59 0.56
4th Quarter  105.7   39.2  13.2  0.59  0.57
     $403.4 $142.8 $45.8 $2.06 $1.97

(a)  Earnings per common share amounts are computed 
independently for each of the quarters presented. 
Therefore, the sum of the quarterly earnings per 
share may not equal the annual earnings per share. 
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18. Subsequent Event
In an agreement dated February 21, 2007, between 
Franklin Electric and Howden Africa Holdings Limited, 
Franklin will acquire Howden’s 42 percent shareholding 
in Pump Brands (Pty) Limited, Johannesburg, South 
Africa (“Pumps”) for an estimated $4.5 million, 
subject to certain terms and conditions, including the 
requirement of obtaining approval from the South 
African Competition Authority. Pumps is involved 
in the design, manufacture, marketing and selling of 
pumps and related products in South Africa and other 
African markets. Pumps offers a broad range of products 
for the agricultural sector, water and effl uent treatment 
industries as well as for processing, pharmaceutical, 
food and beverage, petrochemical, and construction.
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Dividend Payments
The number of shareowners of record as of January 12, 2007 was 935. The Company’s stock is traded on Nasdaq 
National Market: Symbol FELE.

All share and per share data included in this annual report refl ects the Company’s two-for-one stock split effected in 
the form of a 100 percent stock distribution made on June 15, 2004. Dividends paid and the price range per common 
share as quoted by the Nasdaq National Market for 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

 DIVIDENDS PER SHARE PRICE PER SHARE
 2006 2005 2006 2005
   Low High Low High
1st Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ .10 $ .08 $38.70 $55.72 $37.36 $44.31
2nd Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ .11 $ .10 $46.37 $62.95 $34.54 $40.82
3rd Quarter  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ .11 $ .10 $45.70 $54.19 $37.01 $45.29
4th Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ .11 $ .10 $49.50 $57.35 $39.20 $44.75

Stock Performance Graph
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